
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded 
 

Agenda compiled by: 
John Grieve 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 22 43836 
 

 
 
 

Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development: 
Peter Marrington 
Tel: 39 51151 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (RESOURCES AND COUNCIL SERVICES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on 

Monday, 5th December, 2011 at 10.00 am 
 

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
S Bentley - Weetwood; 

A Blackburn - Farnley and Wortley; 

J L Carter - Adel and Wharfedale; 

B Chastney - Weetwood; 

N Dawson - Morley South; 

P Grahame (Chair) - Cross Gates and Whinmoor; 

R Grahame - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill; 

J Hardy - Farnley and Wortley; 

A Lowe - Armley; 

C Macniven - Roundhay; 

R Wood - Calverley and Farsley; 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting).  
 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

           No exempt items on this agenda. 
 
 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notifications of substitutes. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 7th November and a Call In 
meeting held on 9th November 2011. 
 
(Copies attached) 
 

1 - 10 

7   
 

  2011/12 QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
To consider a report by the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Customer Access and Performance) 
which presents a summary of the quarter 2 
performance data  for 2011-12 and provides an 
update on the progress in delivering the priorities in 
the Council Business Plan which are relevant to 
this Board. 
 
(Report attached) 
 

11 - 
36 



 

 
D 

8   
 

  WASTE MANAGEMENT PROCESS REVIEW 
PROJECT 
 
To consider a report by the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development which provides an update 
on the Waste Management Process Review 
Project. 
 
(Report attached)  
 

37 - 
40 

9   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the Board’s draft work 
schedule, together with the latest Executive Board 
minutes and Forward Plan 
 
(Report attached) 
 

41 - 
76 

10   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday 9th January 2012 at 10.00am in the Civic 
Hall, Leeds (Pre – Meeting for Board Members at 
9.30am) 
 

 

 
 
 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday 5

th
 December 2011 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (RESOURCES AND COUNCIL SERVICES) 
 

MONDAY, 7TH NOVEMBER, 2011 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor P Grahame in the Chair 

 Councillors S Bentley, A Blackburn, 
J L Carter, Dawson, C Fox, R Grahame, 
J Hardy, A Lowe and C Macniven 

 
36 Declarations of Interest  
 

Councillor Ron Grahame declared a personal interest in relation to agenda 
item 7, Financial Health Monitoring 2011/12 – Month six report, in his capacity 
as a Director of East North East Homes ALMO, a Member of the GMB Union, 
a Leeds Credit Union Member and a member of West Yorkshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority (Minute No. 39 refers) 
 
Councillor Hardy declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 7, 
Financial Health Monitoring 2011/12 – Month six report, in his capacity as a 
Member of West North West Homes ALMO, and as a Member of the GMB 
Union (Minutes No.39 refers) 
 

37 Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Chastney and Councillor 
R Wood. Notification had been received that Councillor C Fox was to 
substitute for Councillor Wood. 
 

38 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 3rd October 2011 be 
confirmed  as a true and correct record. 
 

39 Financial Health Monitoring 2011/12 - Month 6 Report  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which 
provided information for Financial Health Monitoring 2011/12 month 6. 
 
The Board had agreed in October that the November meeting would focus on 
Children’s Services. 
 
The following Councillors and Officers attended; 
 
Executive Board Member Children’s Services, Councillor Blake, 
Chair of Scrutiny Board (Children and Families), Councillor Chapman 
Chief Officer (Financial Management) 
Director of Children’s Services 
Head of Finance, Children’s Services  
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday 5

th
 December 2011 

 

Opening the discussion the Chief Officer (Financial Management) provided 
Members with a summary overview of the financial position of the Council at 
month 6. 
 
The overall projected overspend at the half year stage was £7.2m, which was 
largely unchanged from last month.  
 
In brief summary the issues discussed relating to the overall financial position 
of the Council were; 
 

• The increased level of reserves 

• Non achievement of assumed procurement savings for residential and 
nursing care packages within Adult Social Care 

• Income shortfalls mainly relating to planning and building regulation 
fees, car parking, advertising and children’s centres 

• Projected surplus in the Housing Revenue Account 

• The high levels of financial performance management in relation to 
council tax collection, non-domestic rates and Sundry income 

 
In response to a question on phased budgeting the Chief Officer (Financial 
Management) explained the role of the monthly budget monitoring reports and 
the requirements of budget holders and reviewing officers to monitor budget 
projections against real time expenditure.  The Board would be provided with 
month 6 actual overspend.  
 
Following these general budget discussions the Board focused on Children’s 
Services.  A Document entitled, Children’s Services – Turning the curve on 
placements for looked after children, referred to as the ‘Plan on a Page’ was 
tabled by the Director of Children’s Services. 
 
Whilst Members acknowledged the considerable improvements made by 
Children’s Services which were now being evidenced by good external 
inspections, the following issues were raised and discussed; 
 

• The number of externally provided residential and fostering placements 
in Children’s Services and consequential budget pressures 

• Opportunities to safely reduce reliance on external placements through 
smarter and better working with partners, increased preventative work 
and maximising the role of fostering and the City Councils ‘offer’ in 
relation to fostering. 

• Scope to reduce the costs of external placements that continue to be 
needed 

• Ensuring all partners made appropriate financial contributions to the 
service  

• The need to set realistic budgets to meet demand whilst continuing to 
turning the curve on placements 

• The importance of locality working in decision making and the 
development of a ‘total place’ culture in the delivery and funding of 
services.  

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday 5

th
 December 2011 

 

 
Throughout the discussion Members were informed of, and acknowledged the 
work being undertaken by Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) in 
addressing a number of these issues and noted a general invitation given by 
the Scrutiny Chair, Councillor Chapman, for Members to observe this work. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
      (i)       To thank those members and officers attending for their input 

(ii) To note the Council’s Financial Performance for month 6 
(ii) To receive the additional information requested 

 
(Councillor Lowe left the meeting at this point at 11.20 am) 
 

40 Large Casino - Approval of Revised Gambling Act 2005 - Statement of 
Licensing Policy 2010 - 2012  

 
In line with the Budget and Policy Framework, the Director of Resources 
submitted a report referred from Executive Board presenting the revised 
Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Licensing Policy which contained a 
statement of the principles the Council would apply when making the 
determination of the large casino licence. In addition, the report also 
presented the Consultation Report which was the proposed Council response 
to the public consultation on the large casino section in the Policy, and the 
draft application pack.  
 
The following officers attended the meeting and responded to Members 
questions and Comments: 
 
Nicole Raper – Section Head – Entertainment Licensing 
Susan Holden – Principal Project Officer – Entertainment Licensing 
Rowena Hall – Executive Manager, Specialist projects, City Development 
 
The main areas of discussion were; 
 

• The role and remit of the Social Inclusion Fund 

• The potential social effects on the city of a large casino 

• The logistics of how applicants would monitor ‘negative social, equality 
and health impacts’ as written in the policy 

 
RESOLVED –  
 

(i) That the Executive Board be advised that this Scrutiny Board 
recommends that Executive Board and full Council should be 
confident that there are clear economic benefits in having a 
large casino and that these benefits are not outweighed by any 
negative social/economic impacts. 

 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday 5

th
 December 2011 

 

(ii) That Executive Board and full Council note the 
recommendations made by NHS Leeds during the consultation 
exercise 

 
 
(Cllr Bentley left the meeting during this item at 11.45 am) 
 

41 Fleet Services - Additional Information  
 

The Chief Commercial Services Officer submitted a report which provided an 
update for Scrutiny Board on a number of issues raised at its meeting on 3rd  
October.  These included; 
 

• Vehicle down time issues, particularly for the Refuse service 

• Progress on more sustainable fuelling strategies 

• The financial performance of the service 

• The exercise of powers to charge within Commercial Services 

• The outcome of a visit by Scrutiny Members to Fleet Services on 21st 
October 2011 

The following officers attended the meeting and responded to Members 
questions and comments: 
 

- Julie Meakin – Chief Commercial Services Officer 
- Terry Pycroft – Head of Fleet Services 

 
In brief summary, the main areas of discussion were:  
 

• The potential for merging Fleet Maintenance for Parks and Countryside 
with Fleet Services at the York Road depot 

• Maximising income through more proactive advertising of MOTs for 
example, working with other public sector partners  

• The need to discuss with Streetscene whether Vehicle off Roads are 
causing a problem and whether the spare vehicle threshold needed to 
be raised 

• Alternative fuels 

• Apprentices 
 
RESOLVED –  
 

(i) That the report and appendices be noted and the officers 
thanked for their attendance 

 
(ii) That further information be brought back to the Board in 

February 2012 on the following topics: 
 

• Vehicle replacement programme and the consequences 
for introducing alternative fuels  

• The cost of Apprentices 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday 5

th
 December 2011 

 

• The further considerations taken in relation to expanding 
income through increased MOTs 

 
42 Work Schedule  
 

A report was submitted by the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
which detailed the Scrutiny Board’s work programme for the current municipal 
year. 
  
Appended to the report for Members’ information was the current version of 
the Board’s work programme, the minutes from the Executive Board meeting 
held on 12th October 2011, together with an extract from the Forward Plan of 
Key Decisions for the period 1st October to 31st January 2012. 
 
RESOLVED – That the work programme, as amended, be approved. 
 

43 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 

RESOLVED – To note that the next meeting will take place on Monday 5th 
December 2011 at 10.00am in the Civic Hall, Leeds (Pre- Meeting for Board 
Members at 9.30am) 
 
 
(The meeting concluded at 12.20pm) 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 5

th
 December 2011  

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (RESOURCES AND COUNCIL SERVICES) 
 

WEDNESDAY, 9TH NOVEMBER, 2011 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor P Grahame in the Chair 

 Councillors J Akhtar, A Blackburn, 
B Chastney, R Grahame, J Hardy, 
C Macniven, J Matthews, V Morgan, 
M Robinson and R Wood 

 
44 Declarations of Interest  
 

None were received  
 

45 Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Bentley, JL 
Carter, Dawson and Lowe. 
 
Councillors Akhtar, Matthews Morgan  and Robinson were in attendance as 
substitutes. 
 

46 Call - In Decision  - Briefing Paper  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development informed 
Members of the Call In arrangements in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution and the options of action available to the Board.  It was reported 
that the following options were available to the Board: 
  

• Release the decision for implementation  
• Recommend that the decision be reconsidered  
• Recommend that the decision be reconsidered and refer the matter to 

full Council if recommendation not accepted 
  

    RESOLVED –    That the report be noted and the procedures adopted as   
detailed within the report. 

 
47 Call In - Beckett Park Building, Foxcroft Close, Leeds, LS6 3NT - Internal 

Refurbishment Works  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented the 
background papers to a decision which had been Called In, in accordance 
with the Council’s Constitution.  The decision was a Delegated Decision 
Notice of the Chief Officer Financial Development regarding the release of 
capital expenditure for internal refurbishment works at the Beckett Park 
building.  
 
 
 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 5

th
 December 2011  

 

The Chair welcomed the following to the meeting: 
 

• Councillor S Bentley – Signatory to the Call In 

• Councillor J Illingworth  - Signatory to the Call In 

• Maureen Taylor - Chief Officer Financial Development 

• Gary Milner – Head of 14 -19 Strategy, Children’s Services 

• Denise Finch, Project Manager, Children’s Services 

• Christine Addison, Acting Chief Asset Management Officer 

• Paul Quarmby – Service Project Manager – City Development 

• Iain Priest – Capital Finance Officer – Children’s Services 
 
Councillor Illingworth and Councillor Bentley outlined the reasons for the Call 
In of the decision.  These included the following: 
 

• The lack of detail in the report in terms of alternative locations 
considered and the lack of evidence within the report to support the 
statement that Beckett Park Primary School was the ideal location for 
Vine 

• the lack of early and appropriate local ward member involvement and 
consultation 

• The lack of robust administrative processes which would alert decision 
makers if adequate consultation with members had not taken place 

• An opportunity to raise a more fundamental question regarding capital 
schemes, the decision making process and where accountability lies.  

 
In response to the concerns raised, Officers present raised the following 
issues: 

 

• Acknowledgment that Member consultation had been inadequate on 
this occasion 

• Acknowledgment of the lack of detail in relation to option appraisals 
within the delegated decision report 

• Reiteration that the Beckett Park scheme offered the best solution 
 
Councillor Illingworth and Councillor Bentley were invited to summarise the 
reasons for calling in the decision. In doing so, they stated that had they been 
offered adequate detail, within the delegated decision report, of the option 
appraisal undertaken, resulting in Beckett Park being chosen, and had there 
been sufficient Member involvement and consultation then it would have been 
likely that this decision would not have been Called In. However, the 
opportunity to raise the wider issue of delegated decisions, capital schemes 
and accountability was welcomed. 
 
Members were asked to consider the options available to them. 
 
(Councillor A Blackburn joined the meeting during this item at 10.20am) 
 
 
 

Page 8



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 5

th
 December 2011  

 

48 Outcome of Call In  
 

It was agreed unanimously by the Board that the decision be released for 
implementation. 
 
It was similarly agreed that a working group of the Scrutiny Board be 
established to look at the issues raised in terms of the way in which delegated 
decisions in relation to capital schemes are made, the point at which 
decisions are published and decision makers accountable and the level of 
Member consultation during the decision making process.  
 
RESOLVED –   (i)  to release the decision for implementation. 
      (ii)   to establish a scrutiny working group  
 

49 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 

Monday, 5th December 2011 at 10.00 a.m. (Pre-meeting at 9.30 a.m. for all 
Board Members. 
 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 5 

Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance) 

Report to Resources and Council Services Scrutiny Board 

Date: 5th Dec 2011 

Subject: 2011/12 Quarter 2 Performance Report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: N/A 

Summary of main issues 

1. This report presents to Scrutiny a summary of the quarter 2 performance data relevant 
to the Resources and Council Services.  One key issue has been highlighted for 
Members attention – the budget.   

Recommendations 

2. Members are requested to: 

• Note the issue of the budget which has been highlighted and consider if they 
are satisfied with the work underway to address this issue.   

• Note the progress in relation to the delivery of the Cross Council Priorities in the 
Council Business Plan and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny 
work in any of these areas.   

• Note the progress in relation to the directorate priorities and indicators within the 
Council Business Plan that fall within the remit of the Resources and Council 
Services Scrutiny Board. 

• Identify any further reports or information that they may require to fulfil their 
scrutiny role in relation to the priorities for Resources and Council Services 
Scrutiny Board. 

 
 

 
Report author:   
Heather Pinches  

Tel:  43347 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



 

Page 2 of 5 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report presents to Scrutiny a summary of the quarter two performance data for 2011-12 
which provides an update on progress in delivering the priorities in the Council Business Plan 
2011-15 which are relevant to the Board.   

2 Background information 

2.1 A new set of delivery plans for the Council and the city were adopted by Council in July 2011 
and this report is the first performance update setting out the progress in delivery of these 
plans.  The plans and performance management arrangements that form the basis of this 
report have been developed alongside the revised partnership boards for the city in a whole 
system approach.  Members will note that the delivery of City Priority Plan priorities are shared 
with partners across the city while the Council Business Plan sets out the Council’s contribution 
to these shared priorities.  This report whilst providing an overview of the performance relating 
to the City Priority Plan deliberately focuses more on the council’s contribution which will best 
enable Scrutiny to challenge the organisation. 

2.2 The new performance management arrangement include a number of new reports including: 

•••• Performance Reports – these are produced for the each of the City Priority Plan priorities 
and for the 5 Cross-Council Priorities in the Council Business Plan.  They are a one page 
summary of progress in delivering the priority including a RAG rating of overall progress.  
Where possible the headline indictor is shown in a graph to clearly indicate progress and the 
reports include a look forward to the actions due over the next 3-6 months.  We have 
adopted the principles of outcomes based accountability in these reports. 

•••• Directorate Priorities and Indicators – a directorate scorecard has been produced for each 
directorate which sets out the high level progress against each of the directorates priorities 
and indicators in the Council Business Plan.  These are all available on the intranet and 
published on the Council’s website.  It also includes the directorates contribution to the cross 
council priorities and indicators.  For Scrutiny purposes these scorecards have been divided 
up so that each Scrutiny Board receives an update on the priorities within the remit of their 
Board recognising that these do not necessarily align directly to the Council’s directorates in 
all case.  Members will note that this does mean that some priorities will go to two or more 
Scrutiny Boards and Boards are asked to consider working jointly on any follow up inquiries 
or nominate a lead Board. 

•••• Self Assessment – each directorate has the opportunity in this section to raise any other 
performance issues that might not be directly represented within the directorate priorities 
and indicators. 

 

2.3 These reports are designed to provide a high level overview of performance issues related to 
the City Priority and Council Business Plans only.  Members will need to use this information 
and the discussion in their boards to identify what further reports and more detailed information 
they might require in order to fulfil their scrutiny role.  Therefore, these reports are designed to 
be a starting point for the work of the board.   

2.4 This report includes three appendices: 

•••• Appendix 1a – Performance Reports for the Resources and Council Services City Priorities.   

•••• Appendix 1b – Resources Directorate Priorities and Indicators  

•••• Appendix 1c – Customer Services and Performance Directorate Priorities and Indicators 

•••• Appendix 1d – Other Directorate Priorities and Indicators relevant to the Board 

3 Main issues 

Performance Overview  

Council Business Plan  

Cross Council Priorities 

3.1 There are 5 cross-council priorities, supporting the implementation of the values and none of 
these are assessed as red (all are currently amber).  However, the performance indicators on 

Page 12



 

Page 3 of 5 

the variation from the agreed directorate budget is rated as red in all directorates with the 
exception of Resources and Customer Access and Performance.  

3.2 Members will note that work is underway to develop some of the indicators that will support the 
values around ‘consulting with the public’ and ‘giving due regard to equality’.  Progress will be 
assessed through examining key and major decisions for assurance that decision makers have 
been provided with the correct information in order to make the decisions.  This is important in 
order to protect the authority and its decision-makers from legal challenge (as has already 
occurred in other local authorities) and possible resulting financial consequences.  Members 
will note that a revised reporting template was introduced on 1st September that specifically 
includes sections on consultation and equality which will prompt report writers to include this 
information.  Work has commenced to develop the methodology for measuring and reporting 
on this indicator.  It is anticipated that a result for these indicators will be reported at Q4.  
Members of Scrutiny Boards are also asked to consider calling in any decisions where the 
report does not clearly evidence that effective consultation has taken place and due regard has 
been given to equality. 

3.3 In addition the first staff engagement survey will report at Q3. 

Directorate Priorities and Indicators 

3.4 There are 28 Directorate Priorities which support the delivery of the Resources and Council 
Services priorities most of these are drawn from Resources and Customer Access and 
Performance directorates – although there are a few from other directorates that directly link 
and these have also been included for completeness (see appendix 1d).  Of these none are 
red, 9 are amber and 19 are green.  These are supported by 28 performance indicators that 
can be reported at quarter two of these 2 indicators are rated as red (these are listed below), 4 
are amber, 22 are green.  Red rated indicators are: 

•••• Percentage of Executive Board and Key/Major decisions that are implemented in 3 months 
(Resources) 

•••• Income in City Development (City Development) 

 

Key performance issues for Resources and Council Services Board  

i) Budget  

3.5 The projected year-end overall overspend is £7.2m at month 6 which represents 1.2% of the 
budget.  This is an improved position from quarter 1 and the position has continued to improve 
in month 7 .  Budget action plans are in place in directorates and over £80m of the budgeted 
savings for 2011/12 are on target to be delivered.  A number of actions have also been taken 
corporately to increase reserves; most notably the Council has been successful in a VAT claim 
which has increased the general reserves position by £8.4m as at the end of 2010/11.  
Although some of this sum has been used for the Early Leavers Initiative, the remainder will be 
used to mitigate against some of the spending pressures outlined above.  In addition, Capital 
Financing costs are projected to be £2.6m less than the budget due to the Council taking 
advantage of the continuing low short term interest rates.  Therefore, whilst there are 
overspends within Directorates and on-going financial risks the overspend is being managed 
effectively for the Council as a whole.  However, all Scrutiny Boards need to be aware of the 
overall financial context when scrutinising the areas of work within the remit of their Board.  

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement 

4.1.1 All performance information is normally reviewed by Directorate Leadership Teams, 
Partnership Boards (for City Priorities) and the Best Council Board (Cross-Council Priorities).  
However timings of some Boards did mean that this was not possible in all cases for quarter 
two, but in the future meetings will be scheduled to align better with the quarterly reporting 
cycle.  All performance information has been reviewed by CLT and the Council’s Performance 
Board.   

Page 13



 

Page 4 of 5 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 Whilst some of the performance reports do include an update on the significant issues for the 
delivery of the priority from an equality perspective some do not.  This is the first time that 
these reports have been prepared and, therefore, Scrutiny Boards may wish to consider 
whether this issue is sufficiently covered in the performance reports in their area.  This 
feedback can then be used to strengthen the reporting arrangements going forward.   

4.2.2 This is also an issue that will be given further consideration through a piece of work that has 
been commissioned by the Leeds Initiative Board.  This work is looking at what reporting 
arrangements are needed to track the cross cutting issues that run across several of the 
Strategic Partnership Boards like poverty and inequality (including child poverty and health 
inequalities).  The aim is to be able to capture and understand the various contributions from 
across the Boards to these areas without necessarily creating separate and potentially 
bureaucratic processes.  Proposals are scheduled to be brought back to the Leeds Initiative 
Board in February.   

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This report provides an update on progress in delivering the council and city priorities in line 
with the council’s performance management framework. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 There are no specific resource implications from this report; however, it includes a high level 
update of the Council’s financial position as this is a cross council priority within the Business 

Plan.   

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 All performance information is publically available and will be published on the council and 
Leeds Initiative websites.   

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The Performance Reports include an update of the key risks and challenges for each of the 
priorities.  This is supported by a comprehensive risk management process in the Council to 
monitor and manage key risks.  From this quarter CLT have also reviewed the corporate risk 
register alongside the performance information which will further ensure that the Council’s 
most significant risks are effectively identified and managed. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 This is the first time that the performance reports and scorecards have been produced and 
there is still some work to do to ensure that they are high quality information updates, written 
in plain English with jargon kept to a minimum.  In terms of City Priority Plan performance 
reports these also need to be owned and debated by the five Strategic Partnership Boards 
and include more information from across the partnership.  Timing issues meant that this did 
not happen in all cases at quarter two although they were signed off by key stakeholders as 
appropriate.  Outcomes Based Accountability support will be offered to all Boards to help 
them to develop and refine their action plans for the delivery of the priorities for their boards 
and to help them to use the data to shape their performance discussions.  Some of the 
performance information was also incomplete and will be chased for quarter three.   

5.2 However, overall the performance reports and directorate scorecards are a clear and simple 
summary of performance that Members can use to understand the current performance of the 
in relation to the priorities from our strategic plans which are relevant to the Board. 

Page 14



 

Page 5 of 5 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are requested to: 

•••• Note the issue of the budget which has been highlighted and consider if they are 
satisfied with the work underway to address this issue.   

•••• Note the progress in relation to the delivery of the Cross Council Priorities in the 
Council Business Plan and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny work 
in any of these areas.   

•••• Note the progress in relation to the directorate priorities and indicators within the 
Council Business Plan that fall within the remit of the Resources and Council 
Services Scrutiny Board. 

•••• Identify any further reports or information that they may require to fulfil their scrutiny 
role in relation to the priorities for Resources and Council Services Scrutiny Board. 

7 Background documents 

• City Priority Plan 2011-15 
• Council Business Plan 2011-15 
• Council and City Performance Management Framework (Draft) 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
r

a
is

a
ls

 c
o

m
p

le
t
e

d
 b

y
 d

ir
e

c
t
o

r
a

t
e

 2
0

1
1

-
2

0
1

2

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

Childrens

E & N

LCC

ASC

PPI

City Dev

Legal

Resources

J
u

n
-
1

1

J
u

l-
1

1

S
e

p
-
1

1

V
a

lu
e

: 
W

o
rk

in
g

 a
s

 a
 t

e
a

m
 f

o
r 

L
e

e
d

s
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
: 

S
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

le
a

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 r
o

le
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

le
a

r 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

  
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

. 

W
h

y
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 -

 A
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
in

 d
ri
v
in

g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 
e
m

b
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 v

a
lu

e
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 m

e
e

t 
fu

tu
re

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
. 
T

h
e

 C
h

ie
f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 d

ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

re
 c

h
a

m
p

io
n

in
g

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 a
s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 a

re
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
, 

m
o
ti
v
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 t
h
e
ir
 r

o
le

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

L
e

e
d
s
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
: 

A
M

B
E

R

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

: 
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 H

e
a

d
li

n
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
 E

v
e

ry
 y

e
a

r 
1

0
0

 p
e

r 
c

e
n

t 
o

f 
s

ta
ff

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 a
p

p
ra

is
a

l

A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
 -

 F
o

r 
2
0
1

1
-1

2
 a

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
ti

m
e
ta

b
le

 w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 f
u
ll 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

b
e

tw
e
e

n
 A

p
ri
l 
a

n
d

 J
u

ly
 a

n
d
 i
n

te
ri
m

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
a

n
d

  
D

e
c
e

m
b
e

r 

A
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 s

e
t 
o

f 
1
0
0
%

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

n
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 

b
e

tw
e
e

n
 1

s
t  A

p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 3

1
s
t 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 
s
e
tt

in
g
 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 w

it
h
 C

o
u
n

c
il,

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s
. 
  

A
s
 a

t 
3
1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1
, 
th

e
 L

C
C

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 w

a
s
 7

8
%

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

p
e

rf
o
rm

in
g

 d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 (
L

e
g

a
l)
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 9

7
%

 a
n

d
 t
h
e

 l
o

w
e
s
t 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 6

3
%

. 
  

A
t 
3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1

, 
th

e
 L

C
C

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 w

a
s
 9

3
%

 w
it
h

 t
h
re

e
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

9
5
%

 a
n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

th
re

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

o
v
e
r 

9
0
%

.

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
: 

P
P

I,
 C

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 L

e
g

a
l 
–

 h
a

v
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 

o
f 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 -
  
n
o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
1
0
 -

1
1
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 j
o
in

e
d

 w
it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
1
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 b

u
t 
h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
. 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ts
 &

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 –

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a

ro
u

n
d
 s

c
h
e
d
u

lin
g
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 f
o
r 

c
re

w
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 h
a
v
e

 b
e
e
n

 a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 g

ro
u
p
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 d

a
y
s
.

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 –
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 c

h
a

lle
n
g
e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d

 s
c
h

e
d
u
lin

g
 a

p
p
ra

is
a

ls
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o

o
l 
b
a
s
e
d
 s

ta
ff

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d
. 

A
s
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
0
0
%

 a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
, 
th

is
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

it
h
 n

o
 m

e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 s

tr
a
n
d
. 
A

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
G

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

m
a
k
e
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
e
rs

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 
h
o
w

 n
o
t 
to

 t
re

a
t 
s
ta

ff
 u

n
fa

ir
ly

 d
u
ri
n
g
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o

r 
b
y
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
ts

e
lf
. 

T
h
e
 I
n
v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 r
e
v
ie

w
 h

ig
h

lig
h
te

d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 d

e
fi
n
e
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

. 
T

h
e
 ‘
E

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

le
a
d

e
rs

 &
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

’ 
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

re
in

fo
rc

e
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 c
le

a
r 

a
b
o
u
t 
w

h
a
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 o

f 
th

e
m

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 

O
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 t
h
re

e
 ‘
C

a
lls

 t
o
 A

c
ti
o
n
’ 
in

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
 t

o
 a

ll 
le

a
d
e
rs

 i
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
w

it
h
 a

 P
D

P
 a

n
d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 l
in

k
e
d

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

s
.

C
R

O
S

S
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

2
V

A
L

1

Page 17



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 s
ta

ff
 t

h
in

k
?

 I
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
 S

ta
ff
 S

u
rv

e
y
, 
6
8
%

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

ta
ff
 s

a
id

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
d
 h

a
d
 a

n
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l/
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
 w

it
h
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 r
e
s
p
o
n

s
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 5

4
%

 a
n
d
 7

9
%

. 
T

h
e
 2

0
1
1
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 q

u
a
n
ti
ta

ti
v
e
 d

a
ta

 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
w

 p
e
o
p
le

 f
e
e
l 
a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

, 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
ir
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
  
T

h
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 s
a

m
p
le

 a
p

p
ra

is
a
ls

 c
a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 
a
n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
fe

e
d

b
a

c
k
 o

n
 s

ta
ff
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

o
f 
a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

. 
 T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
In

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p

le
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 q

u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
h
o

w
 l
e
a

d
e
rs

 a
n

d
 m

a
n
a

g
e
rs

, 
le

a
d

, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
m

. 

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
: 

 
F

o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
, 
a
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
0
0
%

 a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 b
y
 J

u
ly

 3
1

s
t  w

a
s
 s

e
t.
 

 
C

a
ll 

to
 a

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
‘q

u
a
lit

y
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

’ 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 b

y
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 t
o
 a

ll 
le

a
d
e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
s
ta

rt
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

 
H

R
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 
H

R
 O

D
 L

e
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 a

ll 
a
p
p
ra

is
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 

ro
le

s
 

 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

a
p
p

ra
is

a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 d
ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

re
 a

p
p

ra
is

e
d

 o
n

 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 s

ta
ff
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 a
p
p
ra

is
e
d

. 

 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 S

it
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 i
n
tr

a
n
e
t 
to

 g
iv

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 t
o
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 ‘
q

u
a

lit
y
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

’ 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 A

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
S

k
ill

s
 f
o

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

. 

 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 S

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
t 
d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 (

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 a

n
d

 h
a

rd
 c

o
p
y
) 

to
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 t
a

k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

 
E

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
L
e
a
d
e
rs

 a
n
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 C
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e

 2
0
1
1

 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

a
s
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 o

n
 S

A
P

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 1

0
0
%

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
.

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

N
e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
: 

 
E

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
L
e
a
d
e
rs

 a
n
d

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 

e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d

 

 
L
e

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

w
id

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 o

u
r 

c
o
u
n
c
il-

w
id

e
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 

fr
a

m
e
w

o
rk

 b
a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 

 
S

a
m

p
lin

g
 o

f 
‘q

u
a
lit

y
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

’ 
to

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ilo
ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

n
-l
in

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 a
n

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 s

e
t 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 c

o
re

 a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 

fo
rm

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

 
R

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
fu

l 
to

o
ls

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
le

a
d

e
rs

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 l
a

u
n

c
h
e

d
 o

n
 S

h
a

re
P

o
in

t.
 

W
h

a
t 

W
o

rk
e
d

 L
o

c
a
ll

y
 /
C

a
s
e
 s

tu
d

y
 o

f 
im

p
a
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 b
a

s
e
d

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 o
f 
im

p
a

c
t 
/ 
g

o
o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
D

a
ta

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

 
C

it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 h

ig
h
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
le

v
e
ls

 b
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
in

g
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

, 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

t 
D

M
T

 
le

v
e
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
’ 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 

 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
n
te

g
ri
ty

 o
f 
S

A
P

 
d
a
ta

 e
.g

. 
c
o
rr

e
c
t 
b
a
s
e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 

a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
fi
e
ld

s
. 
 

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 O
D

 L
e
a
d

s
 a

re
 i
n
 t
h

e
 t
e
a
m

 a
n
d

 t
a
k
e

 o
n
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
‘A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
C

h
a
m

p
io

n
’ 
ro

le
, 
ra

is
in

g
 t
h
e
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

. 
 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
d
a

ta
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

o
re

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

p
p
ra

is
in

g
 M

a
n

a
g
e
rs

 b
y
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

g
ra

d
e
, 
s
p
a
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
e
tc

. 

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 H
R

 L
e
a
d
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
/ 
S

A
P

 d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 f
o
r 

c
a

s
u

a
l 
a

n
d

 n
o

n
 

L
C

C
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e

s
. 

 
G

ro
u
p

 A
p

p
ra

is
a

ls
 f
o

r 
te

a
m

s
 o

f 
fr

o
n
t 
lin

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ilo
te

d
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d

 d
is

ru
p
ti
o
n
 

to
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 C
h

a
ll
e
n

g
e
s
  
 

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

a
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 c

o
re

 a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
fo

rm
s
  
  

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ra
is

in
g

 s
o
m

e
 c

re
w

-b
a
s
e
d
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
T

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

Page 18



V
a

lu
e

: 
B

e
in

g
 o

p
e

n
, 

h
o

n
e

s
t 

a
n

d
 t

ru
s

te
d

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

: 
S

ta
ff

 a
re

 f
u

ll
y
 i

n
v

o
lv

e
d

 i
n

 d
e

li
v

e
ri

n
g

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 f

e
e

l 
a

b
le

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

h
o

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 

H
e

a
d

li
n

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r:

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s

ta
ff

 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

A
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
id

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
u

rv
e

y
 

w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 n

o
 

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

G
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

  

W
h

y
 i

s
 t

h
is

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 -

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
ta

ff
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
is

 e
s
s
e
n

ti
a

l 
to

 h
e

lp
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

m
e

e
t 
th

e
 m

a
n

y
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 i
t 
fa

c
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
W

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 m

a
n

y
 f

a
c
to

rs
 t

h
a

t 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 s
ta

ff
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

tr
o

n
g

, 
a

lig
n

e
d

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

, 
a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

, 
e

n
g

a
g

in
g

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
. 

 W
h

e
th

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 f

e
e

l 
lis

te
n

e
d

 t
o

 a
n

d
 

v
a

lu
e

d
, 

a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
re

 l
iv

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

v
a

lu
e

s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

d
ri

v
e

rs
 o

f 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
: 

A
M

B
E

R

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 a

 n
e
w

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 s

ta
ff

 e
n
g
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
b
a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t
h
e

 M
a

c
L
e
o
d
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
in

 2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e
s
 s

ta
ff
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 I
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
o
u
r 

d
ri
v
e
rs

 
o
f 
L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

, 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
, 
S

ta
ff
 V

o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 I
n
te

g
ri
ty

. 
 A

 b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 s

u
rv

e
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

th
is

 n
e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r2
0

1
1

. 
T

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 (
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

) 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 t
h

is
 a

n
d

 a
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

ill
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 t
a
k
e
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
y
e
a
r.

  

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 s
tr

a
n

d
s

. 

T
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d

 b
y
 k

e
y
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 e

.g
. 
a
g
e
, 
g
ra

d
e
, 
g
e
n
d
e
r,

 a
n
d
 

e
a
c
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 s

u
rv

e
y
 s

a
m

p
le

 w
ill

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th

a
t 
p
ro

fi
le

. 
T

h
a
t 
w

a
y
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 t
h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
, 
e
a
c
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

h
o
le

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 b

y
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

fi
le

s
. 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 a

n
y
 r

e
la

te
d

 m
e

a
s

u
re

s
  

T
h
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 w

it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
a
b
le

 d
e
ta

il 
a
t 
a

 l
o
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l.
  

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 I
iP

, 
a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 s

to
ry

 t
o
 t
h
e

 h
e

a
d
lin

e
 p

ic
tu

re
 w

h
ic

h
 e

m
e
rg

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 s
u

rv
e
y
. 
T

h
e
 ‘
Im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
/p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
’ 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 w
ill

 h
e
lp

 u
s
 a

d
a
p
t 
m

o
re

 q
u
ic

k
ly

 t
o

 c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
, 
p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
lie

fs
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
, 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 o

r 
th

e
 e

ff
e

c
t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 d
o

n
e

 
in

te
rn

a
lly

 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

  
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
n
e

w
 i
m

m
e
rs

iv
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 (

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

la
s
t 
y
e
a
r’
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
fo

c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
) 

w
o
u
ld

 g
iv

e
 e

v
e
n

 g
re

a
te

r 
o
p
p
o

rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 d

e
fi
n
e
 (

b
e
c
o
m

e
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
) 

th
e
 t
h
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
tt
e
r 

m
o
s
t 
to

 t
h
e
m

 a
t 
w

o
rk

. 

E
v

id
e

n
c

e
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll

 t
re

n
d

 

S
ta

ff
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
 k

e
y
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 d

ri
v
e
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

 t
h
e
 c

u
lt
u
re

 o
f 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 l
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 c
h
ie

f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 a
n
d
 C

L
T

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
y
e

a
r.

 
A

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

1
0
0
%

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
s
 l
a
id

 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
d
ir
e
c
t 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
ir
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 l
in

k
e
d

 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 v
a
lu

e
s
 

u
n

d
e
rp

in
n

in
g

 o
u

r 
c
u

lt
u

re
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 a

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

’ 
a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

. 
S

ta
ff
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
te

a
m

 a
n
d
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
le

v
e

l 
is

 c
o

re
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
le

a
d
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 l
a

u
n

c
h
e

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
t 
th

e
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 C
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

3
0

. 

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 s
ta

ff
 t

h
in

k
?

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 u

n
io

n
s
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 o

u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
is

s
u
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
e
a

rc
h
 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
1
8
 

m
o
n
th

s
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
. 
K

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 i
n
 t
h
e

 r
e

s
e
a

rc
h

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n

g
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
d
 b

y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 h

o
w

 w
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
, 
re

c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

v
a
lu

e
s
, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t
im

e
ly

 a
n
d
 m

e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 a

n
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
. 
S

ta
ff

 o
v
e

rw
h
e
lm

in
g

ly
 c

h
o
s
e
 'h

e
lp

in
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
' o

r 
h
e
lp

in
g
 c

o
lle

a
g
u
e

s
' a

s
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
th

in
g
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
ir
 j
o
b
s
.

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
 

V
A

L
2

C
R

O
S

S
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 

Page 19



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 s
ta

ff
 t

h
in

k
?

 (
c

o
n

t)

T
h
e
 c

o
n
te

n
t 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0
9
 S

ta
ff

 S
u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 t
o
ld

 u
s
 t
h
a
t 
8
3
%

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 f
e
lt
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n

c
il.

 

T
h
e
 2

0
1
1
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
: 

 
m

e
a
s
u
re

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

 u
s
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
ra

c
k
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 e
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
le

v
e
ls

 o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
.

 
m

e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 d
o
n
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 d

ri
v
e

rs
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 e

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
F

o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 w

e
re

 a
s
k
e
d
 f
o

r 
th

e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 s
u
rv

e
y
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
. 
 S

ta
ff

  
to

ld
 u

s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

le
a

r 
a
b
o
u
t 
w

h
o
 a

re
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

, 
w

h
a

t 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 

m
e
a
n
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 t
h
a
t 
 w

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 t
e
ll 

e
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 w

h
a
t 
h
a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 t
h
e
m

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
. 

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

 
R

a
is

e
d

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
e
a
m

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 g

a
in

e
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
 n

e
w

 s
u
rv

e
y
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 n

e
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
s
u

rv
e

y
 a

n
d

 p
ilo

te
d

 t
h

is
 w

it
h

 f
o

c
u

s
 g

ro
u
p

s
 

o
f 
a
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 p

lu
s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fr

o
n

t 
lin

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 

w
it
h
 l
it
e
ra

c
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 
L
in

k
e
d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
o
lk

it
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 s
it
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 i
n

 
h
e
lp

in
g

 t
h
e
ir
 s

ta
ff

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

 
T

o
o
k
 k

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 o
f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t:
 

 L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

: 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 v

ia
 i
n
te

rn
e
t 
w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 e

.g
. 
T

o
m

’s
 b

lo
g
; 

‘q
u
a
lit

y
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

’ 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 c

a
ll 

to
 a

c
ti
o
n
. 

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
: 
K

e
y
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
le

a
d

e
rs

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d
 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 V
o
ic

e
: 
O

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
‘M

e
e
t 
T

o
m

’ 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
3

7
5
0
 s

ta
ff

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 h
a
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 r

a
is

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n

s
. 

In
te

g
ri
ty

: 
N

e
w

 v
a
lu

e
s
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

a
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
a
t 
re

c
o
g
n
is

e
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
h
a

v
io

u
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

W
h

a
t 

W
o

rk
e

d
 L

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
m

o
v
e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
, 
in

 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
6
5
0
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

o
a
d
 

s
h

o
w

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
A

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
D

e
s
ig

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
d
o
n
e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 t
ra

d
e
 u

n
io

n
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t
o
 c

e
a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

W
it
h
 4

0
 p

lu
s
 j
o
b
s
 a

t 
ri
s
k
, 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a

g
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 w

o
rk

e
d

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

.

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

 
N

e
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
u
rv

e
y
 t
o
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
u
rv

e
y
 t
o
 a

ll 
lin

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
ra

d
e
 u

n
io

n
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
a
ilo

re
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
e
x
p
la

in
in

g
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 

ta
k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 t
h

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

ru
n

 f
ro

m
 1

7
th
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

to
 1

1
th
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

 
A

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
re

s
u
lt
s
 b

y
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
 

 
C

o
rr

e
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
la

te
d
 H

R
 m

e
tr

ic
s
 a

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

P
e
o
p
le

 P
la

n
, 
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
  

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

–
 a

n
d
 k

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

b
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

. 

 
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 i
n

v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

to
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
it
h

 a
 l
o

w
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 r
a

te
 a

n
d

 
a
 l
o
w

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

 
W

h
e
re

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

t 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 o
r 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
r 

fo
r 

c
e
rt

a
in

 
s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

fo
llo

w
-u

p
 q

u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 l
e
v
e
l.
  

 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

k
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 d

ri
v
e

rs
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t:
 

o
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

: 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 o

u
r 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

w
id

e
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

o
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
: 
N

e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n

te
d
  

o
 

V
o
ic

e
: 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fr

o
n
t 
lin

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

‘M
e

e
t 
T

o
m

’ 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 d

ir
e
c
t 
e
n
g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

 

o
In

te
g
ri
ty

: 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 v

a
lu

e
s
 t
o
 f
o
llo

w
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 v
a

lu
e

s
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
u

rv
e

y
.

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

T
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u
e
n
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 b

y
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 o

n
 a

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

 
L
o
w

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 w
h
ic

h
 i
n

v
a
lid

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
. 
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
le

a
d
e

rs
h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 

F
a
ilu

re
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n

 o
n

 t
h
e
 f
o
u
r 

d
ri

v
e
rs

 o
f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

V
is

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fi
n
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 o

n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
s
e
 e

.g
. 
F

a
ilu

re
 t
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 ‘
Y

o
u
 s

a
id

, 
w

e
 d

id
..
.…

’ 
m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

Page 20



C
R

O
S

S
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
V

A
L

3
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
 

V
a

lu
e

: 
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

  
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
:

L
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
e

d
 a

b
o

u
t 
m

a
jo

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
y
 a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e

ir
 l
iv

e
s
.

W
h

y
 i

s
 t

h
is

 a
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

  
- 

A
t 

a
 t

im
e

 w
h

e
n

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 l
im

it
e

d
 w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 s
u

re
 w

e
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 n

e
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 w
a

y
. 

B
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 c
le

a
r 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

e
 c

a
n

 e
n

s
u

re
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

b
le

 t
o

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 w
h
a

t 
w

e
 d

o
 a

t 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

, 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

T
h

is
 h

e
lp

s
 u

s
 m

o
v
e

 
fr

o
m

 d
o

in
g

 t
h

in
g

s
 t

o
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

to
w

a
rd

s
 d

o
in

g
 t

h
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 p

e
o

p
le

. 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
: 

A
M

B
E

R

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

 
T

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

v
a

lu
e

s
 p

la
c
e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
  

‘w
a

y
 w

e
 d

o
 t

h
in

g
s
’ 
in

 L
e
e

d
s
. 

‘W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
’,
 i
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
  

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
‘w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
  

th
a

t 
m

a
y
 a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e

ir
 l
iv

e
s
’.
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

  
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
k
e

y
 a

n
d

 m
a

jo
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 t
h

a
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 T
h

is
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 i
s
 o

w
n

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 (
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

) 
b

u
t 

is
 a

ls
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
ll 

D
ir

e
c
to

rs
. 

 
T

h
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

‘b
e

in
g

 o
p

e
n
, 

h
o

n
e

s
t 

a
n

d
 t

ru
s
te

d
’ 
a

ls
o

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

 
In

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
lim

a
te

 i
t 

is
 i
n

e
v
it
a

b
le

 t
h

a
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 s

c
ru

ti
n

is
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 a

n
y
 p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
. 

W
e

 n
e

e
d

 
to

 b
e

 c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t

im
e

ly
 a

n
d

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
.

 
T

h
e

 2
0

1
1

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 k
e

y
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 

fo
r 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 L

e
e

d
s
: 

 P
u

b
lic

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 

 A
re

a
 w

o
rk

in
g

  

 S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 

 L
o

c
a

lis
m

 

 
T

h
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 u
s
in

g
 a

 n
e

w
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 i
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
e

rs
 f

o
r 

k
e

y
/m

a
jo

r 
a

n
d

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 d
e

c
is

io
n
s
. 

 B
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
t 

a
s
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
it
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 
s
e

n
io

r 
le

a
d

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

re
 c

le
a
rl

y
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 o
u

r 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
. 

 W
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 f

o
r 

m
e

a
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 B

e
s
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

B
o

a
rd

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 

 
T

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
d

 c
le

a
re

r 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
ro

u
n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 
re

p
o

rt
s
. 

 T
h
e

 n
e

w
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
e

m
p

la
te

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 w
a

s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 f

ro
m

 1
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 s

o
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 n
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 Q
1

 
a

n
d

 Q
2

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
s
 w

a
s
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n

d
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

 T
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

s
e

t 
o
f 

re
s
u

lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 a

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
th

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
u

s
 d

ri
v
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 

H
e

a
d

li
n

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r:

E
v
e

ry
 y

e
a

r 
w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
th

a
t 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 i
n
 1

0
0

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t 

o
f 

m
a

jo
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n
s
 a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
iv

e
s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 -

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 r
e

s
u

lt
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 

Q
4

 

Page 21



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
in

k

In
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
0

 r
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
to

 E
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
ld

 u
s
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 f

e
e

l 
a

b
o

u
t 

g
e
tt

in
g

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
:

o
 

8
9

%
 o

f 
re

s
p
o

n
d

e
n

ts
 f

e
e

l 
it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 f
e

e
l 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

o
 

2
8

%
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 b
e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

p
u

b
lic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 a
re

a
 (

2
4

%
 a

re
 d

is
s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
) 

o
 

4
5

%
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 p

o
in

t 
ta

k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 c
o

u
n
c
il-

ru
n

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

a
s
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr

e
a

d
y
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 b

e
fo

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 a
s
k
e

d
 

o
 

3
9

%
 w

a
n

t 
to

 b
e

 m
o

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

b
o

u
t 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

ff
e
c
t 

th
e

ir
 l
o
c
a

l 
a

re
a

 

N
e

w
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 C
it
iz

e
n

s
’ 
P

a
n

e
l 
. 

 

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

T
a

lk
in

g
 P

o
in

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 e
.g

. 
e

a
rl

y
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
ro

s
s
-c

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 

 
C

re
a

te
d

 n
e

w
 k

e
y
 a

n
d

 m
a

jo
r 

re
p

o
rt

 t
e

m
p

la
te

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

 
S

ta
rt

e
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 C
it
iz

e
n

s
’ 
P

a
n

e
l 

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 l
e

a
d

s
 s

e
t 

u
p

 w
it
h

in
 C

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  

 
A

 r
e

v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
ty

p
e

s
 o

f 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
le

d
 b

y
 L

IP
 c

o
lle

a
g

u
e
s
 

W
h

a
t 

W
o

rk
e

d
 L

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 w
a

y
s
 t

o
 g

e
t 

e
a

rl
y
 

w
a

rn
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
tr

a
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 n
e

e
d

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 o

r 
d

e
la

y
 t

o
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
. 

 
T

h
e

 E
v
e

ry
 C

h
ild

 M
a

tt
e

rs
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 a

 g
o

o
d

 e
x
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
a

 w
e

ll-
c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

, 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

u
p

ils
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

v
e

rs
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

is
s
u

e
, 

g
e

n
e

ra
te

s
 a

 h
ig

h
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 r
a

te
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

s
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
, 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n
s
. 

 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

it
iz

e
n

’s
 P

a
n

e
l 

 
A

ll 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

a
le

n
d

a
r 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

s
e

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 P

a
n

e
l,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

B
P

Is
 a

n
d

 m
a

jo
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

-r
e

la
te

d
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

, 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 
L

IP
, 

in
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 a

n
d

 s
ta

rt
 t
o

 e
m

b
e

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 n

e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 
to

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t(
 t

b
c
) 

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
n

 a
ll 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
, 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
a

k
e
 

p
la

c
e

 f
ro

m
 Q

3
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 

 
A

d
d

 a
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
t 
to

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
lin

e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
a
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 d

o
n

e
, 

is
 d

o
n

e
 w

e
ll.

 
 R

e
v
is

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ri

ti
n

g
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 i
n

s
is

t 
th

a
t 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 l
in

k
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

h
a

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
 b

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 T
a

lk
in

g
 P

o
in

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

o
 

N
o

t 
h

a
v
in

g
 a

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
c
o

u
n

c
il-

w
id

e
 c

u
lt
u

re
 o

f 
ti
m

e
ly

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
f 

e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

o
 

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
e

x
p

e
rt

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 t

a
s
k
e

d
 w

it
h

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
  

o
 

In
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
fe

e
d

b
a

c
k
 o

n
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 

o
 

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 

Page 22



V
a

lu
e

: 
T

re
a

ti
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
a

ir
ly

 
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
: 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 i
s

 g
iv

e
n

 d
u

e
 r

e
g

a
rd

 i
n

 c
o

u
n

c
il

 p
o

li
c

y
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
.

W
h

y
 i

s
 t

h
is

 a
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

  
- 

W
e

 a
re

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
d

in
g

 u
n

la
w

fu
l 
d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
a

ra
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 v
ic

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
a

d
v
a

n
c
in

g
 e

q
u

a
l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 f
o
s
te

ri
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
. 

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 a

re
 g

iv
e

n
 p

ro
p

e
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

h
e

n
 w

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n
s
. 

B
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 
h

a
v
e

 d
o

n
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
m

o
s
t 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 w

e
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

le
g

a
l 
a

n
d

 m
o

ra
l 
o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
: 

A
m

b
e
r

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

T
h

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 p

u
b

lic
 b

o
d

ie
s
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 d
u

e
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
t

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
t 

h
a

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 T

h
is

 w
a

s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

  
It

 n
o

w
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e

c
o

rd
in

g
 w

h
e

re
 i
t 

w
a

s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 n
o

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
th

a
t 

th
e

y
 w

e
re

 a
lr

e
a

d
y
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
v
ia

 t
h

e
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
.

T
h

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 u
s
in

g
 a

 n
e

w
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
s
 g

iv
e

n
 d

u
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
 i
n

 
p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
. 

 B
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
t 

a
s
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
it
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 s
e

n
io

r 
le

a
d

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 f
u

ll 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
u

r 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 c

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 o
n

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 W
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 

fo
r 

m
e

a
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 B

e
s
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

B
o

a
rd

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

d
u

e
 r

e
g

a
rd

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 c

o
u

ld
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 l
e

g
a

l 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 

a
s
s
is

t 
in

 f
o

c
u

s
in

g
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 b

o
th

 l
e

g
a

l 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
k
e

s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
a

ll 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

T
h

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 T

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
 c

le
a

re
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 a
ro

u
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
. 

 T
h

is
 n

o
w

 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 e
x
p

lic
it
ly

 r
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 a

n
d

/o
r 

e
q

u
a

lit
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 

 T
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

e
m

p
la

te
 

a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 w
a

s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 f

ro
m

 1
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 s

o
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 n
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 Q
1

 a
n

d
 Q

2
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

ri
o
d

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

E
q

u
a

lit
y
 T

e
a

m
 h

a
v
e

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

t 
a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 k

e
y
 a

n
d

 m
a

jo
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d

 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g

 u
s
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 f
u

tu
re

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
  

T
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 
 I

n
 

s
o

m
e

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

d
e

, 
a

n
d

 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 

in
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
 t
h
a

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
. 

 O
n

g
o

in
g

 w
o

rk
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 T

e
a

m
 w

it
h

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 s

u
g

g
e

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 
re

fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 t
ru

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 
 W

o
rk

 i
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 i
s
 o

b
v
io

u
s
 a

n
d

 i
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 s

h
o

w
n

 t
h

a
t 

o
u

r 
v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

tr
e

a
ti
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
a

ir
ly

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

s
 o

u
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
. 
  

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 T

e
a

m
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
e

m
p

la
te

 w
ill

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 m

o
re

 e
x
p

lic
it
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 Q
3

 a
n

d
 Q

4
. 

 T
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
re

s
u

lt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 Q

4
, 

b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 t

im
e

 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

e
q

u
a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 1
0

0
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t 
o

f 
k
e

y
 a

n
d

 m
a

jo
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 c

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

H
e

a
d

li
n

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r:

E
v
e

ry
 y

e
a

r 
w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

e
q

u
a

lit
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 1
0

0
 p

e
r 

c
e
n

t 
o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s

C
R

O
S

S
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

V
A

L
4

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
 

Page 23



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k
: 

  
  

T
h

e
 W

h
a

t 
if
 L

e
e

d
s
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

a
w

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 t

o
p

ic
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
a

ll 
s
o
c
ia

l 
g

ro
u

p
s
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 r
ic

h
 a

n
d

 p
o

o
r 

a
n

d
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 

in
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
 T

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
u
rv

e
y
 m

a
y
 g

iv
e
 a

n
 

in
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o

n
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
 ‘
tr

e
a

ti
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
a

ir
ly

’ 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

v
e

n
u

e
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
t 

a
 l
a

te
r 

d
a

te
. 

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

 
 T

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 w

ri
ti
n

g
 t

e
m

p
la

te
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d
, 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 f

ro
m

 1
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
; 

 
D

u
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 T

e
a

m
. 

 T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 b
ri

e
fi
n

g
s
 i
n

 k
e

y
 

a
re

a
s
 e

g
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t;
 

 
D

u
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 k
e

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 f

o
ru

m
s
: 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

, 
D

e
p

u
ty

 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
L

ic
e

n
s
in

g
 P

a
n

e
l 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

P
la

n
s
 P

a
n

e
l 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 B

o
a

rd
 C

h
a

ir
s
, 

a
n
d

 A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 C

h
a

ir
s
. 

  

 
IO

D
A

 (
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 t

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
r)

 h
a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 (

b
o

th
 g

e
n

e
ri

c
 a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
is

e
d

) 
to

 a
ll 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

 
Im

m
e

d
ia

te
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 T

e
a

m
 o

n
 

E
IA

s
 a

n
d

 s
c
re

e
n

in
g

s
 w

h
e

n
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 b

y
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 

 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
h

e
c
k
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
ir

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 v

is
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

g
iv

in
g

 
d

u
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

ir
 d

ir
e

c
to

r 

 
A

ll 
E

IA
’s

 a
n
d

 S
c
re

e
n

in
g
s
 a

re
 s

e
n

s
e

 c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 T

e
a

m
 b

e
fo

re
 

th
e

y
 a

re
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

W
h

a
t 

W
o

rk
e

d
 L

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

F
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
p

le
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

 g
o

o
d

 e
x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
h

o
w

 g
iv

in
g

 d
u

e
 r

e
g

a
rd

 
to

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 h

a
s
 i
n

fl
u

e
n
c
e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 i
s
: 

th
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 r
e

ta
in

 s
o

m
e

 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 

w
a

s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 d
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 E

IA
 e

g
 B

u
rl

e
y
 a

n
d

 D
e

w
s
b

u
ry

 R
o

a
d

 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 d

u
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
 t

o
 

a
ll 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 

 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 Q
A

 o
n

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 

s
c
re

e
n

in
g

s

 
T

h
e

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 P

o
s
it
io

n
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

2
0

1
1

 w
ill

 b
e

 w
id

e
ly

 
p

ro
m

o
te

d
. 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 f
a

c
tu

a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

a
b

o
u

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 
c
a

n
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 E
IA

s
 

 
C

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 c
a

p
tu

re
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
f 

g
iv

in
g

 d
u

e
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 o

n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 n
e

w
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

n
d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 t

o
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

 
F

in
a

lis
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

a
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 ‘
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

’ 
o
f 

d
u

e
 

re
g

a
rd

.

 
N

e
w

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e
d

 b
y
 B

e
s
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 f
ir

s
t 

re
s
u
lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

Q
4

 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
d

u
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
 i
s
 g

iv
e

n
 i
n

 d
e

c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
lic

y
 m

a
k
in

g
 c

a
n

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i
n

: 
 

le
g

a
l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 e

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
o

rm
 o

f 
ju

d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 b

e
 c

o
s
tl
y
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
 c

o
n

s
u

m
in

g
;.

  
 

 
n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 o

n
 r

e
p

u
ta

ti
o
n

; 
 

u
n

d
e

rm
in

in
g

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
; 

 
w

a
s
te

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n

d
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
ti
m

e
.

Page 24



C
R

O
S

S
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

V
A

L
5

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
 

V
a

lu
e

: 
S

p
e

n
d

in
g

 m
o

n
e

y
 w

is
e

ly
 

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

:
A

ll 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

ir
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 a

n
d

 s
ta

y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t

 W
h

y
 i

s
 t

h
is

 a
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

  
- 

T
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
c
lim

a
te

 w
e

 a
re

 i
n

 i
s
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
. 
O

u
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

n
d

 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s
 o

n
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
u

r 
b

u
d

g
e

t-
s
e

tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 p

la
n

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 
w

it
h

 l
e

s
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

o
in

g
 t

h
in

g
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

iz
e

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

. 
It

 i
s
 v

it
a

l 
th

a
t 
w

e
 s

ti
c
k
 t

o
 t
h

is
 p

la
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

ta
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
n

 
th

e
ir

 b
u

d
g

e
t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
s
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

A
M

B
E

R

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

T
h
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 

u
n
p
re

c
e
d
e
n
te

d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

g
ra

n
ts

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 b

y
 o

v
e
r 

£
5
0
m

. 
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 

p
re

s
s
u
re

s
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 m

e
a
n
t 

th
a
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
a
ro

u
n
d
 £

9
0
m

 h
a
v
e
 

h
a
d
 t

o
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

 

A
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

e
e
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 g

ra
p
h
, 

th
e
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
  

b
u
d
g
e
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 i
n
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a
rs

 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

d
, 

w
it
h
 a

c
ti
o
n
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 t

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a
rs

.

A
t 

th
e
 h

a
lf
 y

e
a
r 

s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a

r,
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 £

7
.2

m
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 

a
m

b
e
r 

a
s
 i
t 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
 j
u
s
t 

1
.2

%
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t.
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 a
re

: 

 
N

o
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
s
s
u
m

e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

u
rs

in
g
 c

a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a
lly

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fo
s
te

ri
n
g
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
In

c
o
m

e
 s

h
o
rt

fa
lls

 m
a
in

ly
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 f

e
e
s
, 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 

H
e

a
d

li
n

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r:

N
o

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 a
g

re
e

d
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

y
e

a
r

Page 25



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

  
th

in
k

  
  
L
a
s
t 

a
u
tu

m
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 g
a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 ‘
S

p
e
n
d
in

g
 C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
’ 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 e

n
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 w
e
re

 r
e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

fa
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
b
o
u
t 

h
o
w

 
w

e
 c

o
u
ld

 s
a
v
e
 £

1
5
0
m

 o
v
e
r 

n
e
x
t 

fo
u
r 

y
e
a
rs

. 
 N

e
a
rl
y
 2

5
0
0
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
ti
n
g
 f

ro
n
tl
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
. 

 T
h
is

 s
u
m

m
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
ld

 u
s
 t

h
e
ir
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
u
tu

re
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

 
F

ri
e
n
d
ly

 C
it
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 A
 l
ig

h
t-

to
u
c
h
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t

o
 c

h
e
c
k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 w

it
h
 a

n
 a

rt
ic

le
 d

u
e
 t

o
 g

o
 o

u
t 

in
 A

b
o
u
t 

L
e

e
d
s
 i
n
 N

o
v
/D

e
c
. 
 A

 f
u
ll 

re
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

’s
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

c
y
c
le

.

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 a

s
s
u
m

e
s
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 b

o
th

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
in

 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
.

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
; 

m
o
s
t 

n
o
ta

b
ly

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 a
 V

A
T

 
c
la

im
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 b

y
 £

8
.4

m
 

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 s

u
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 E

a
rl
y
 L

e
a
v
e
rs

 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
, 

th
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 
a
g
a
in

s
t 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 a

b
o

v
e
. 

 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 £

2
.6

m
 l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
k
in

g
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 l
o
w

 s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
ra

te
s
.

W
h

a
t 

W
o

rk
e

d
 L

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

 
P

u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 h

u
b
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

re
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
m

a
b
le

s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

o
rd

e
ri
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 e

n
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 i
s
 m

a
x
im

is
e
d
. 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

 
A

ll 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
. 

 

 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

fo
r 

a
ro

u
n

d
 4

0
0
 

s
ta

ff
 l
e
a
v
in

g
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a

 n
e
w

 E
a
rl
y
 L

e
a
v
e
rs

 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 e

x
p
re

s
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 q

u
a
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 

th
is

 w
ill

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

 
W

it
h
in

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h
 

d
e
m

a
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

re
v
is

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 

h
e
lp

 d
ri
v
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 b

u
d
g
e

ts
 o

n
 a

 l
in

e
 b

y
 l
in

e
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
 f

re
e
z
e
s
 o

n
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
n
o
n
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

s
p
e
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

 
O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 

e
x
p
lo

re
d
 w

it
h
in

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s

D
a

ta
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 
N

o
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
re

p
a
re

s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

s
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e

n
c
e
s
, 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 
a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
s
e
, 

th
e
 v

a
lu

e
 i
n
 m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 t

e
rm

s
, 
re

v
ie

w
 d

a
te

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
s
. 

 
T

h
e
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

is
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 

s
ta

rt
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

. 

T
h
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 3
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 7

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
s
. 

T
h
e
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
s
 a

re
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
a
n
d

 
n
u
rs

in
g
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
fo

s
te

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
lly

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
h
ild

c
a
re

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

Page 26



2011/12 CAP Directorate Scorecard Reporting Period :

Directorate Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 

Progress
Supporting Measures Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

A draft customer access strategy has been prepared the contents of 

which have been discussed with Directorate leadership teams. 

Directorates have agreed to supply their priorities which will be 

incorporated in the strategy. Next step CLT. In relation to specific 

customer access transformation activity, a specification for the 

required CRM review work has been issued to interested parties . A 

business case for customer acccess phase 1 (process redesign and 

improvement within existing technology) has been prepared. 

Increase the range of self service options available to the public, by 

ensuring all high demand transactions can be undertaken online

In relation to current project activity for refuse, recommendations for 

improvement have been agreed and the project is now moving to 

the implementation stage. For EAS work is concentrating on 

finalising the agreed scope of the project with the managers 

concerned . The website replacement work continues which includes 

designing the layout of the new website, gathering better information 

on the most popular on-line transactions and establishing an 

improved mechanism for assessing satisfaction with the website. 

Thought is also being given to the business as usual requirements 

once the project is completed.

Improve overall customer satisfaction of the council’s website

Establish a research and intelligence capability for the 

city and produce an annual State of the City report.

Positive progress made against this priority.  The first State of the 

City report has been agreed by the Leeds Initiative Board and the 

first Council / Partner event on State of the City is planned for 7th 

December 2011.  Executive Board agreed transfer of Yorkshire 

Forward's Chief Economists Unit to Leeds City Council effective 

from 1st November 2011.  Meetings have been held with the Health 

sector to develop links on intelligence agenda given proposed 

changes in the health sector.  A conversation has also started with 

Leeds University on linking research and intelligence capacity.

Green N/A

Deliver an approach to locality working with improved 

community engagement and more local decision 

making

During Q's 1 & 2 the emphasis has been on developing appropriate 

delivery structures for Locality Working. Leadership Teams are now 

in place and have been inducted in the three areas. Staff teams 

have been realigned to deliver against new priorities, and will be 

operating against the new structure by the end of October 2011. 

Arrangements are in place to migrate the former Locality Working 

Programme Board into the Leeds Initiative Partnership structure 

where is will play a key strategic role in linking Locality Working 

across the wider city priorities. New environmental delegations have 

been developed with Area Committees and are now in place, 

enabling Area Committees to directly manage local priorites for 

environmental action though SLA's.

Amber
Increase percentage of people who feel they are involved in their 

local community

Deliver effective leadership and governance 

arrangements for the city-region partnership.

The leadership and governance arrangements have now been 

agreed by the Leeds City Region Partnership.  They comprise a 

formally constituted Joint Committee of the Leaders of the eleven 

constituent local authority leaders and a Local Enterprise 

Partnership (LEP) Board which is a business-led advisory body.  

The LEP is now developing a city region Strategic Economic Plan 

for agreement by the Joint Committee later in the Autumn

Green N/A

Increase percentage of residents who trust the council’s 

communications

Indicator being 

developed - To be 

collected through 

Citizens Panel

Indicator being 

developed - To be 

collected through 

Citizens Panel

Quarter 2 20011/12

Improve communications and marketing services 

The new corporate led communications and marketing structure was 

fully recruited to by the 1st Aug 2011 and staff have all now 

transferred. A first team building event was held on 27 Sept and 

further events are planned particularly as the team enters the CtW 

programme. The teams service plan will be published in the next two 

weeks. Priorities are currently being agreed with all stakeholders and 
Green

Lead the delivery of our customer access strategy to 

improve customer experience
Amber

Indicator being 

developed

Indicator being 

developed

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\7\AI00034765\$cpbccejj.xls

P
age 27



Increase percentage of services who feel their communications and 

marketing needs are being met effectively

Indicator being 

developed

Improve communications and marketing services 

across the council.

weeks. Priorities are currently being agreed with all stakeholders and 

a detailed work programme will be created by the new year.  Despite 

the structural hiatus the team continues to generally provide an 

effective communications service. It remains very early days for the 

new team but the foundations are in place to take full advantage of 

our new ways of working. Overall progress is amber to reflect the 

ambition of our improvement plans.  

Green

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\7\AI00034765\$cpbccejj.xls

P
age 28



Increase percentage of City Priority Plan priorities with positive 

progress
N/A 95%

Increase percentage of partners who feel they can influence change

Increase the number of employees using flexible ways of working

Increase percentage of staff who believe the values are positively 

affecting their own and others’ behaviour

Information Governance

Activity around information governance continues.  The Council is progressing in line with the plan agreed by CLT in October with Level 1 training being rolled out to 

all staff from week commencing 21st November.  The target date for 100% compliance on Level 1 training will be mid January 2012.   

Self Assessment

Indicator being 

developed

Indicator being 

developed

Indicator being 

developed

Customer Access

There have been reduced levels of performance in customer contact in particular in relation to housing repairs issues particularly from customers of WNWH and 

AVH following new contractual arrangements with Morrison FS. There has been a high level of repeat contact. Most contact of this nature has had to be channelled 

through the Morrison FS planning team who in turn have found it difficult to respond in an acceptable time frame. Call answering performance has been severely 

affected in relation to both answer rates and speed of answer. On a more positive note the call answer performance in relation to environmental services and 

registrars has seen a marked improvement in the year through a combination of changed processes and the use of automated technology. There was a general 

improvement across all lines in October. Morrison FS are due to take responsibility for repeat call handling as from 1 December 2011.

Deliver a report for the Commission for the Future of Local Government, and a productive and engaging process both nationally and locally.

membership secured and first meeting in November with brief papers issued, proactive approach to communications and stakeholder engagement, CLT/LMT 

updates provided.

Create the environment for effective partnership 

working and for delivering the city’s planning and 

performance management framework

The new Leeds Initiative Partnership Structure was agreed by the 

council's Executive Board and the Leeds Initiative Board in June 

2011.  It comprises the main Board and five thematic Boards: 

Sustainable Economy and Culture; Safer and Stronger; 

Neighbourhoods and Housing; Health and Wellbeing; and Children's 

Trust.  The main Board has met three times starting in June 2011.  

Each of the five thematic Boards have met for a first time.  Terms of 

Reference and work programmes have been agreed for each of the 

Boards to include monitoring performance against each of the five 

City Priority Plans agreed

Green

Lead the transformation of our workplace culture and 

working environment

Positive progress made against aspects of this priority.  Changing 

the Workplace programme continues to progress well with 350 ICT 

staff having undertaken Changing the Workplace which allows the 

release of Canon House.  Progress is also being made with the 

move of Community Safety to 2 Gt George Street. This project will 

be completed by November and will allow the release of Leeming 

House.  Progress on agreeing Phase 2 Business Case has been 

delayed due to the need for tests and analysis to take place on 

Merrion House.  This is due to be reported to Executive Board in 

April 2012.  Executive Board report on the integrated One Stop 

Centre at 2 Great George Street will be considered in November.  

With regard too embedding of new Council Values, the staff 

engagement survey has recently been sent to all staff and results 

from this will be known in November / December.  

Amber

Managing Directorate Priorities

Work is ongoing to ensure that arrangements are in place for the directorate priorities to be managed using the relevant service plan or a specific action plan or 

programme plan in order to successfully manage progress. Where a directorate priority requires contributions from across the council and partners further work is 

required to ensure that the commentary accurately reflects the whole picture, rather than just the directorate actions. In addition the definitions of the supporting 

measures are being finalised and will be reported on in future scorecards.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\7\AI00034765\$cpbccejj.xls

P
age 29



P
age 30

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Resources Directorate Scorecard Reporting Period :

Directorate Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 

Progress
Supporting Measures Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Deliver financial planning and management 

which makes sure we keep adequate reserves

The minimum level of reserves has been calculated at £19m using the risk 

based reserves strategy. General Fund reserves at 1st April 2011 have 

risen to £29.6m following a successful VAT claim of £8.4m. Taking into 

account the in -year use of reserves, it is anticipated that reserves will be 

£23m at the year end.

Green Value of Revenue Reserves £23m

Reduction in staff headcount (including percentage of leavers 

who are BME , Disabled or Women monitored against current 

staff profile) 

Baseline: Total Staff = 17,260 (Apr 2010), Target to reduce 

headcount by 1500 by March 2012

15,488

Percentage of senior officers who are women

Percentage of senior officers who are from BME communities

Percentage of senior officers who are disabled

Improve percentage of the workforce by following characteristics: 

Age; Disability; Sex; Ethnicity; Sexual orientation; Religion, faith, 

beliefs, 

Rate of increase less than Q1 (2.14 x 2 = 4.28). Q2 outturn figure of 3.99 

compares favourably to projected Q2 figure of 4.09. Based on this, year 

end figure would be  8.79 against a target of 9.00 days. In support of 

achieving the target a suite of reports are being developed with the BSC to 

assist services in managing attendance issues. In addition workflow 

processes are being developed with the BSC and Occupational Health, 

supported by the wellbeing forum meetings with Occupational Health and 

the unions to address any areas of concern.

Reduce number of days staff sickness (per full time equivalent) - 

Council Figure
2.14 3.99

While the Welfare Reform Bill is completing its passage through 

parliament, the focus has been on a) raising awareness about the 

changes, b) delivering the Housing Benefit changes and c) working with 

DWP to influence the planning and implementation of the Universal Credit. 

Considerable work has been done to raise awareness with members and 

officer seminars delivered and presentations made to ALMO Chief Execs, 

Advice Leeds Network and Children’s Trust Board and arrangements in 

hand to discuss the changes with RSLs.  The April 11 Housing Benefit 

changes have been implemented and communication has been issued to 

help tenants manage the transition to the new arrangements.  

Preparations have also been made for further changes in January 2012 

which see the removal of transitional protection for a number of private 

sector Housing Benefit cases and the extension, again in the private-

rented sector, of the Shared Accommodation Room rate to cover single 

tenants up to the age of 35.  The Service continues to be involved with 

DWP at both a strategic and operational level and contributes to the 

development of implementation and migration plans for Universal Credit.  

Work is underway to develop a Welfare Reform Strategy for consideration 

at January’s Executive Board.

Manage the change to the new welfare system

Quarter 2 20011/12

Manage the reduction in the size of our 

workforce whilst retaining the right 

skills/experience and through developing our 

staff

ELI scheme launched 1st July. 1,000+ expressions of interest received to 

date.

Flexible deployment was launched in August across the Council as a 

resourcing solution to support organisational change.  Monthly directorate 

workforce plans are produced to identify supply and demand to support 

flexible deployment recommendations. From this information 2011/12 

retaining and re-skilling costs are being projected.

Green

Green

-

2011/12 to be a scene 

setting and monitoring year.  

Actual reporting to 

commence once further 

work undertaken on collating 

workforce profile data.  The 

focus on which will be to 

target areas, such as front 

line services, where initial 

response rates were low.

P
age 31



Maintain percentage time ICT Systems are available 99.42% 99.47%

Increase satisfaction of users with ICT Services

Increase user satisfaction with the quality of ICT training (scored 

on scale 1-7)

Annual Report on Risk Management to CGAC 18 July 2011

Annual Internal Audit Report to CGAC 15 June 2011

KPMG Interim Audit Report 18 July 2011

Annual Report on the Corporate Risk Register to the Executive 

Board
27 July 2011

No challenge to the outcome of any election No challenge N/A

Maintain percentage of important  decisions that are implemented 

in 3 months (Measure covers Executive Board & Key/Major 

decisions)

60% 65%

Local Authorities must have in place arrangements for the receipt, 

investigation and decision in respect of complaints that a member has not 

complied with the adopted code of conduct. Also, as part of those 

arrangements Local Authorities must appoint an Independent Person 

whose opinion must sought and taken into account at the conclusion of 

any complaints which have been investigated.    

Improve percentage of important  decisions that are published on 

the forward plan (Measure covers Key decisions) - Target = 89%
76.00% 90.38%

Green

Improve the Information Communication 

Technology (ICT) infrastructure to support the 

delivery of priorities

KPMG gave Annual Governance Statement  (AGS) an unqualified opinion 

re compliance with proper practices.  AGS agreed by Corporate 

Governance and Audit Committee on 30th September 2011.

In response to government proposals contained in the Localism Bill 

agreement in principle has been reached with Whips, CG&A Committee 

and Standards Committee that a locally adopted Code of Conduct for 

Councillors should be adopted.  In addition it was agreed that a process 

for the receipt and consideration of complaints in respect of breaches of 

the Code should be introduced. In the last week the House of Lords 

considered amendments to the Bill concerning Standards.  The Bill now 

requires Local Authorities to adopt a code of conduct consistent with the 7 

Nolan Principles of Conduct in Public Life and which includes provisions 

for the registration and declaration of interests.  

Green

At their meeting on 30/09/11, the Corporate Governance and Audit 

Committee:

• resolved to endorse the revised Risk Management Policy - The proposed 

amendments to which, after consultation with members, reflect a number of 

changes across the Council since the approval of the previous policy in 

2008; and

• approved the final KPMG audited 2010/11 Statement of Accounts 

(included within is KPMG's VFM opinion that the Council has made proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resource.). 

Also, as part of their bi-monthly report Internal Audit brought a number of 

issues to the committee's attention, however, none of these required their 

specific intervention.  

In July 2011, CLT approved joint performance and risk reporting 

arrangements, this is to commence from November 2011.

Maintain effective audit and risk management 

arrangements
Green

ICT systems continue to meet current SLA targets. 

 

Work progresses with the Essential Services Programme (ESP) which will 

deliver new technologies based around the Microsoft products. Detailed 

design work and planning for build of the new technology environment is 

nearing completion.

Work on provision of a diesel generator and improvement of the electrical 

power supply at Apex data centre progresses well. The procurement 

exercise to appoint a supplier for the new electrical systems has been 

completed with the contract due to be awarded by end Oct 2011. A new 

power feed has been ordered from YEDL.  Current estimated timescale for 

completion of this work is Easter 2012 at which point the Apex data centre 

will be protected from power supply issues. 

 

Customer satisfaction (relating to resolution of a customers ICT issue) 

remains very positive. 

Ensure there are good rules and procedures 

to govern the council's business, including 

elections and referenda as may arise

Reported Annually

Reported Annually

P
age 32



Amended internal control arrangements for the authorisation of financial 

commitments over £100k to ensure a delegated officer or committee 

decision supports the expenditure.

As part of a review of processes to remove unnecessary corporate 

bureaucracy a guide on 'How to take a delegated decision' has been 

completed for publication on the ‘Ask Resources’ site.

Reported to RLT options for amendment of aspects of the decision making 

framework  - this is due for further consideration by RLT prior to Christmas

Maintain percentage of important  decisions available for 

challenge (Measure covers Key/Major decisions) - Target = 95%
95.97% 98.21%

Maintain effective arrangements to buy goods 

and provide services that give value for money

The re-developed FMS Leeds went live on 1st September and 

Procurement Unit is monitoring non-compliant and non-standard orders 

going through. To date, PU has received 2487 orders  to investigate. Early 

patterns and trends in spending are being identified and raised with 

Category Managers to allow them to develop their category management 

approach. The Strategic Procurement Team is already working on some 

identified spend areas with the intention of setting up more formal contract 

arrangements.

Target to achieve £20m savings by the financial year end may be impacted 

by projected commissioning savings for residential and nursing 

placements, external fostering and externally provided residential childcare 

placements not being met. 

Green

Delivery of budget savings through procurement -

Note: This includes some presumptions that other services 

responsible for delivering savings that form part of the £20m 

target have been/will be achieved, including: £750k Adult 

Independent Sector, £110k Purchase to Pay (Chris Penn), £250k 

reduction in Arts grants (Mark Forbes), £251k review of E&N 

voluntary/Third Sector (Mark Forbes) and £1m capitalisation of 

library books (Catherine Blanshard)

Collection rate same as last year and on track to hit yearly target Green
Maintain total percentage of Council Tax collected (Target 

99.19%)
99.12% 99.15%

Collection is marginally behind for the same period last year, but, is still on 

track to hit annual target.
Green

Maintain percentage of Council Tax collected in year (Target 

96.7%)
28.62% 55.88%

0.6% of reduced collection rate is directly attributable to Leeds Teaching 

Hospitals moving from lump sum payment in August to 12 monthly 

instalments. However, unlikely that current economic situation will not have 

some adverse impact on collection, but difficult to quantify at present.   

Year-End forecast = 98%

Green
Maintain percentage of business rates collected in year (Target 

98%)
33.03% 60.26%

Still behind on last year, but now only 0.44% behind. At end of August we 

were 1.81% adrift. Year-End forecast = 98%
Green

Maintain percentage of other income collected within 30 days 

(Target 98%)
90.79% 93.49%

The additional resource we secured (both agency and the Risk Based 

Verification (RBV) trial) are helping to clear the backlog.  Average 

processing times improved Q2.  Year-End forecast = 11.41

RBV is a system software product that risk scores all new claims. When a 

claim is returned with a low risk score the claim can be assessed without 

gathering any missing information.  Claims that are medium and high risk 

score must still have any missing information gathered.  The RBV trial has 

been authorised by the DWP.

Amber
Maintain number of days taken to process Housing Benefit or 

Council Tax Benefit new claims and updates (Target 11 days)
14.36 15.08

Throughout quarter 2, 4% of all invoices needed some kind of intervention 

before they could be paid.  During this period central payments 

streamlined the way invoice queries are handled to increase the number 

that are paid promptly.  The increase in the use of purchasing cards and 

decrease in number of invoices received has also helped reduce the 

number of queries.  Throughout quarter 2 99% of clean invoices were 

processed on time.  Work is ongoing with services to promote the use of 

purchasing cards which will further help to streamline the ordering / 

payments processes.

Amber Increase percentage of invoices that are paid within 30 days 90.07% 89.79%

Key Business Plan Supporting Indicators

Reported Annually

P
age 33



Directorate Priorities
Overall 

Progress

Self Assessment RAG Rating Self Assessment
Self 

Assessment

Essential Services Programme Amber Children's Services: BSF (Phases 1, 2, 3, 4 & 5) Green

Essential Data centre upgrades Green ASC: Independent Living  Green

Managers' & Employees' Self-Service Red ASC/City Devpt: Holt Park Wellbeing Amber

Adult Social Care Charging Review Amber City Devpt: New Leaf Leisure Amber

FMS Leeds - Increased Order Controls Green City Devpt: Street Lighting Completed

Pay & Grading project (Phase 2) Amber
PPI: Joint Service Centres Tranche 3 [not included in PPI return - 

RMU awaiting confirmation]
Green

Learning & Development Review (tbc Q3 if a 'major' project) Green

E&N: Little London & Beeston Hill and Holbeck Housing PFI  

[rated as amber by E&N; green by PPPU - RMU awaiting 

clarification]

Green

Corp. Services: PSN Data(ICT Services) Green
E&N: Residual Waste  [rated as amber by E&N; green by PPPU - 

RMU awaiting clarification]
Green

E&N: Mobilisation 2011  Green

Other Projects RAG Rating Progress Summary

Business Support and Administration Review Green

Achievements to date:

• Created the five directorate ordering hubs around Office Supplies 

& Stationery and Business Travel.

• Created a standard stationery list which reduces choice and 

ensures purchases are on contract. 

• Reduced stationery stock levels 

Progress on Major Projects - Q2 update taken from Risk Management report
PFI/PPP major projects that the PPPU helps manage with directorates - also see 

individual directorate returns.

Leeds City Council are acting as lead authority in the project to procure ICT infrastructure and services on behalf of the Yorkshire and Humber region. Currently 8 Local Authorities and 4 Police 

Authorities are working closely together to deliver a solution that will drive significant savings for the public sector and make future collaboration between public sector organisations easier through 

increased compatibility of IT links and systems. The project is due to procure the first tranche of services in summer 2012 and aims to deliver direct saving in excess of 10% on public sector ICT bills.

Made contributions to the SIGOMA, Core Cities and LGYH responses to the Local Government Resources Review.  These are currently being considered by the government.

PPPU has worked in partnership with colleagues from outside of the Council including Environment for Learning Leeds, West Yorkshire Police, ALMO’s and AWYA, to deliver the following: 

• Conclusion of a programme of investment to deliver 14 signed contracts for new and/or refurbished secondary schools in partnership with the Local Education Partnership (Environment for Learning 

Leeds), Interserve and colleagues in Children’s Services. The programme was delivered within budget realising a 3% saving on anticipated capital costs (approximately £5m). 

• Procurement is progressing on the West Yorkshire Police project which has reached preferred bidder stage. 

• Contract Management support is being provided on the ALMO’s Procure 2011 project. 

• Project management support is being provided on the AWYA shared services programme, the Public Sector Network IT project, and Low Carbon Schools. 

CLT approved the Leeds City Council Volunteering Framework as a basis for future Council policy, both for citizens volunteering for roles supporting the delivery of City Council services, and for 

employees of the Council volunteering to help deliver the Leeds City Priority Plan through an Employer Supported Volunteering scheme.   

Improved accountability is one of the outcomes from the LCC chaired strategic review of the WY Resilience Forum.  As a result of the review, the forum now produces an annual report which provides 

all stakeholders with an overview of activities undertake.

Create the environment for effective 

partnership working

Progress Summary

Green
The YORbuild construction framework was a collaboration of local authorities throughout the Yorkshire and Humber region. The sub-regional leads were Scarborough, Rotherham, East Riding of 

Yorkshire and Leeds City Council, of which Procurement Unit played a key role. During 2010, 97 projects were procured through the framework with a value of £145m, achieving savings of £15m.

On track to successfully transition public health service into the council by 1 April 2013. Meetings have taken place between the council and NHS to discuss arrangements. Agreed to develop and 

jointly resource a project team to commence in February 2012 to identify requirements and enusre successful support service integration.

P
age 34



2011/12 City Development Directorate Scorecard Reporting Period :

Directorate Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 

Progress
Supporting Measures Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Reduce running costs of our buildings* £9,339,455                    £26,723,282

Reduce our energy and water bills* £1,458,100 £4,102,125

Reduce our carbon emissions* 14.0%
10.77%

provisional

Maximise income to support the delivery of the budget

It is currently projected that there will be a shortfall of £1m against this years 

income target of £94m. The main areas of concern are planning and 

building fee income, advertising income and markets income.  The Planning 

and Building fee income reductions are due to the recession, with little sign 

of economic recovery, whilst the markets income reflects the level of void 

stalls at Kirkgate Market. The achievement of advertising income is subject 

to a timelag and is not expected until 2012/13.

Amber Deliver income agreed in the budget* £23.1m £46.4m

Link financial and workforce planning

ELIs have been used to reduce staff numbers in services where facilities 

were rationalised such as Leisure Centres and Libraries. The total number 

of FTEs in the directorate has continued to reduce gradually over this year. 

So far, 12 ELI business cases have been submitted to the October ELI 

panel and approved. The Sport restructure has been agreed and future 

service restructures are planned. Workforce planning in services, 

particularly customer facing services, now need to ensure that staff 

numbers and skills are in the correct areas to deliver priorities, and that 

succession planning measures are established. 

Green
Reduce staff numbers in line with the budget 

strategy*
2,370.63 2,363.64

2011/12 Environment and Neighbourhoods Directorate Scorecard

Directorate Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 

Progress
Supporting Measures Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Improve the quality of the customer experience
Joint SLT meetings taking place with Customer Services & Business 

Transformation. Workshop planned with Strategic Managers 9th Dec
Amber N/A N/A N/A

Improve staff engagement

New Divisions have set up their own strategies. Directorate requirements 

e.g. Roadshows & Director's updates being picked up as part of 

conversations with corporate Communication Team

Amber N/A N/A N/A

Work effectively at a local level

SLT discussions taking place with Area Leaders. Environmental delegation 

arrangements progressing well & SLA now signed by all 12 Area 

Committees.  

Green N/A N/A N/A

2011/12 Adult Social Care Directorate Scorecard

Directorate Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 

Progress
Supporting Measures Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

People with social care needs receive coordinated and 

effective personalised support from local health and 

wellbeing agencies

The  Leeds Health and Social Care Transformation Programme includes a 

number of workstreams to provide support to people with long term 

condiitions in the community including those with diabetes and those with 

chronic obstructive pulmonary diseases (COPD). The measure for this 

shows ongoing improvement.

Green

Increase proportion of older people (65 and over) 

who were still at home 91 days after leaving 

hospital into rehabilitation services

92.90% 93.80%

No performance related issues

Self Assessment

Amber

Quarter 2 20011/12

Deliver a new Asset Management Strategy and reduce 

carbon emissions and water usage

Despite the Asset Management Strategy not having yet been finalised, 

progress has been steady on the Asset Rationalisation Programme and 

efficient service utilisation of Council property. The overall Carbon and 

Water Management Plan has delivered well within the confines of the 

currently available resources.

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\6\7\AI00034765\$3vb3vutf.xls

P
age 35



P
age 36

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) 

Date: 5th December 2011 

Subject: Waste Management Process Review Project 
 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes ü   
No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes ü   
No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes ü   
No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes ü   
No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services), Contact Centre Working 
Group is keeping a watching brief on the end to end improvement work which is 
looking at reporting of missed bins . 

 
2. The Customer Access Programme has commissioned a project to look at the end to 

end process for missed bins.  The key objective of this project is to deliver 
efficiencies in the resources required to support process activity, by reviewing and 
improving the way customer enquiries are currently handled.  It will facilitate simple 
and convenient access to service, designed around the needs of customers.  
Duplication will be reduced and administration will be improved.  The workflow of 
service requests will be rationalised.  The production and completion of worksheets 
will be reviewed and standardised. 

 
The scope of the project includes:  

 

• Identify and introduce a defined process for all service requests.  

• Identify and introduce a defined process for all complaints. 

• Introduce electronic service delivery channels for self service. 

 Report author:  Peter Marrington 

Tel:  39 51151 

Agenda Item 8

Page 37



 

 

• Improve and join up communication within the Waste Management Service and 

Customer Services. 

• Integration of systems to provide unmediated, transactional self service access 

channels and reduce and/or replace manual intervention. 

• Review service standards. 

 

Project Outcomes: 

• Provide customers with a range of appropriate access channels through which to 

make a request for service or report a service failure. 

• Deliver a better customer experience by managing customer expectations and 

keeping the customer informed of service interruptions. 

• Provide a robust, streamlined process for receiving, managing service requests that 

will both enable front and back office staff to operate more efficiently. 

 
3. In addition to the above, there is a project underway which will seek to procure a 

new Integrated Waste Management System (IWMS). This will improve the 
efficiency in the service and offer greater visibility of the completion of the routes. 

 
Observations and Conclusions from the working groups  
 
Current Processes  
 
The Scrutiny working group In September 2011 made the following comments 
 
“The working group believe that the systems/processes currently in place within waste 
management for dealing with missed bins are doing the service a disservice. 
 
Observations reveal, Waste Management are operating an antiquated, paper driven 
system which includes a number of systems and operating processes (a 20 year old 
system called Superbase and numerous excel spreadsheets). Processes are labour 
intensive, paper based and could be prone to human error. 
 
The lack of a single contact point for reporting missed bins exacerbates the problem and 
has resulted in an inequity of service.  The speed in which a matter is dealt with will be 
determined by how the issue was reported, i.e. through the complaints system, via a 
councillor, through the contact centre or directly to a depot manager.  This lack of a single 
and managed entry has resulted in managers being swamped by admin work, diverting 
already limited resources away from operational management. 
 
The lack of a single contact point also results in unrecorded complaints thus distorting 
operating statistics making the situation look better than it probably is. 
 
 

Page 38



 

 

Initial solutions 
 
The working group believes there is an urgency to put some order into the current, 
overloaded and creaking system. There is a real need for the rationalisation of existing 
systems and technologies, streamlining current processes, providing customers with 
clearer information and improving communication between Waste Management and 
Customer Services.   
 
The working group supports the proposed work to be carried out under the Customer 
Access Programme, whereby Siebel will replace elements of the current process within the 
Waste Management Service and dovetail with Superbase.   
 
We recommend that a single contact point is established to be used by all  
(Including elected Members).  
 
In providing a single contact point we support the introduction of multiple contact channels, 
e.g. on line self services access identified by the Customer Access Programme. 
 
Long Term solutions 
 
A long terms solution must be the introduction of ‘in cab’ technology.  Whilst perhaps 
ground breaking for Leeds, ‘in cab’ technology is not new. A number of other authorities 
have introduced it and have presumably resolved those issues sometimes cited as 
obstacles to its introduction, i.e. resistance from driver and unions, public fears over the 
use of bin micro chips. 
 
The service must be in a position sooner rather than later where the back office can see in 
real time bins being collected and to be able to send messages back to the cab, in real 
time, when bins are being missed. 
 
An in cab technology pilot has now ended and the findings from that are now forming the 
basis of a proposal. 
 
Waste Management were unable at this early stage to give a figure on how much the 
introduction of in cab technology would cost.  In terms of the actual in cab unit a 
‘guestimate’ figure of  £1800 - £2000 per vehicle was given.  However this was likely to be 
the smallest of the overall costs.  Other costs would need to be factored in such as the 
overall system and processing costs.  
 
It was also noted that a significant amount of work would need to be undertaken to draw 
up a specification that would service a district the size of Leeds.” 

 
Waste Management Process Review Project Update 

 
4. Officers involved in the Waste Management Process Review Project have been 

invited to today’s meeting to update Members on the progress of the project. 
 

Recommendations 
 
5.    Members are asked to: 

Page 39



 

 

 
a) Receive a progress report on the Waste Management Process Review Project 

and offer any comment.  
 
b) Consider the proposed action as described by the project 

 

Background documents  

6. None used 

Page 40



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) 

Date: 5th December 2011 

Subject: Work Schedule 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes ü   
No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes ü   
No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes ü   
No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes ü   
No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. A draft work schedule is attached as appendix 1.  The work programme has been 
provisionally completed pending on going discussions with the Board.  The work 
schedule will be subject to change throughout the municipal year. 

 
2. Also attached as appendix 2 and 3 respectively are the minutes of Executive Board 

2nd November 2011 and the Council’s current Forward Plan relating to this Board’s 
portfolio.  

 
 

Recommendations 
 
3.    Members are asked to: 
 

a) Consider the draft work schedule and make amendments as appropriate.  
b) Note the Executive Board minutes and Forward Plan 

 

Background documents  

4. None used 

 Report author:  Peter Marrington 

Tel:  39 51151 

Agenda Item 9

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

Area of Review June July August 
 

Contact Centre Working 
Group (missed bins) 
 

Consider potential scope of review 
 

 Site visit Knowsthorpe depot 5th 
August for working group members 

Budget Monitoring  Receive Outturn report -SB  

ICT   Site visit – Apex house 2nd August – 
all members invited 

Customer Care Consider potential scope of review 
 

Receive presentation on customer 
access strategy -SB 

 

Officer registration of 
interests 

   

Vehicle maintenance    

Cost of Publications    

Discussion with Leader of 
Council 

Leader of Council -SB   

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
 

   

Recommendation Tracking    
 
 

Performance Monitoring  
 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 43



Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 
 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

Area of Review September October November 

Contact Centre Working 
Group (missed bins) 
 

   

Budget Monitoring Financial report - SB   

ICT Consider external review of ICT -SB Update on working group  

Customer Care    

Officer registration of 
interests 

To receive and Consider request from 
former City Development Scrutiny Board - 
SB 

Consider draft report  

Vehicle maintenance  Present initial data/budgetary 
information 

 

Cost of publications    

Discussion with Leader of 
Council 

 Leader of Council -SB  

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
 

  Licensing Policy 

Recommendation Tracking  
 
 

  

Performance Monitoring  
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 44



Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

Area of Review December January February 

Contact Centre Working 
Group (missed bins) 
 

Streetscene   

Budget Monitoring   Financial Report-SB 

ICT  Discussion on Consultants report 
following CLT 

 

Customer Care  Customer Access Strategy  

Officer registration of 
interests 

 Formal response to final Inquiry report  

Vehicle maintenance   Update 

Decision Making Working Group Following Call In   

Cost of publications   Leader of Council -SB 

Discussion with Leader of 
Council 

 Leader of Council -SB  

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
 

 Initial Budget Proposals - SB  

Recommendation Tracking  
 
 

  

Performance Monitoring Council Business Plan -SB 
 
 
 

Council Business Plan  

 

P
age 45



Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

Area of Review March April May 
 

Contact Centre Working 
Group (missed bins) 
 

   

Budget Monitoring    

ICT    

Customer Care    

Officer registration of 
interests 

   

Vehicle maintenance    

Staff Appraisals and PDPs To consider the Councils approach to 
Personal Development Plans for staff 

  

Cost of publications    

Discussion with Leader of 
Council 

 Leader of Council  

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
 

   

Recommendation Tracking  
 
 

  

Performance Monitoring Council Budget Plan 
 
 

  

P
age 46



Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 

P
age 47



P
age 48

T
his page is intentionally left blank



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

����������	
��
�
�

��
���
������
��
���	���������
�

���������
�

�

	����
���������������	�����������

� �

	����
��� �!������"���������#��
��
	��
$�%�		���	��&�'
��
	��(�'�
�	��$�)�*����
"�+��������	��)�,���
	��

�
�

���� ���������� !�"�# ��$�� %%#&'����(')%# �� ���*���!�%%�"�+��)&'#(��
���
,��
�-�-���������
���������.��
������
�����������	���
��	������
�
	��������
	�
�������
��
*�	��������
���������	��������	���������.�����
	�
������

	�����������������������	����*�
������	��
���
�������
��	�����
����
���	�������
������	��
���
��������
�����	��������������������
�������
�����
*���������	��������*

�����������
�
����
������
���.������	�
�����
	��
�
�����	���������
��
*�/0�
�
1�2� "���	��.����	��(��	����
��������
�������������
��	�#�	
���3
4���5�
	����

����������
��"�������
�6	�
�����
	�(�
���
���$
�����4�172��	��
	�����
��

	������������
	���	���	�
�����
	�������	���
�������	�	�����
���
��	����
��������
����������
��������
	��	��
�������

	���4��-�����	�
�����
	����	
��
�
�������������������
����������
�
�������������
���	�
�����
	�������	�
��������
��������	��
���	�����	�����������4��6������
	���������������	���
������	�
�����
	�*���
����	������

���
	���
�
	��	��
�����
	��*��������
�����
�����������	
���	������
������	��������
������
���������	�
�����
	����
������
�	���	�����4���

1�2� "���	������!��	�����
��������
�������������
��	�#�	
���3
4���7�
	����
����������
��"�������
�6	�
�����
	�(�
���
���$
�����4�172��	��
	�����
��

	��������������
	���	��
�������������	��������	�
�����
	�
	�����
������

	���8������
�����
*�������
�
����	�����
�����	��
�
�������������	������������	���	���	�
�����
	���

�������
���������
������
����
	�
�����������*�����������	�����
�������	�������	�
�����
	�
�
	����	���������
	�������������������	������
�����
*�	���
�������������
�
�����	�
�����
	4�

���� ,"�������%��
-�����*����	
����������������
�����
*���������*���	
����������
������	�����
�	�
�����
	��������	�����
�������
�!
����#��������
��
*�	���������������
��
�������	�������
��
*�/0�
�
1�2� "	�����	�
���
��������
����	��������96	�
������
	�
�����
	�
	�:

��	��

'�
*��8�1#�	
���3
4���;�������24�
�
1�2� �
�����
	��	������������
	�7����+��
����������������	���������
���

�	��������9$���
	����
�)�����+*��-��������
����
	8�1#�	
���3
4���<�
������24�

�

Page 49



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

1�2� �
�����
	��	������������
	�����3
�������������������	���������
���
�	��������9$����
���������-������	��(%6�(�
=����>�$���
	����
�)�����
%���	���
������?��������
����
	9�1#�	
���3
4�����������24�

�
��.� 
�('"!"�# �� ������!�%�%��

�

	����
��������������$�)�*����'
��
	��'�
�	��+��������!�������
��
	��	��
,���
	������������������
	����	���������	��������	���������	��������9)�����
6	���������&
��!
����"���	����	��8���
���
������������������������������
��
)�����6	���������!
������	��(���	��������1#�	
���3
4��7;���������24�
�
�

	����
���$�)�*����%�		���	��	��+������������������������
	����	���������	�
�������	���������	��������9")#+�$����*�@�����8���
���
������������������
������������
��")#+�!
������	��(�	����1#�	
���3
4�������������24�
�
�

	����
���%�		���	��	��'�
�	��
����������������
	����	���������	�����
���	����������	��������9)�	�����-�
����(������
��
	8��9$����
���������
-������	��(%6�(�
=����>�$���
	����
�)�����%���	���
������?��������
����
	8�
�	��9������&
�
��
	��
��)�����>�$����
���������-������	��(%6�(�
=���8���
��
�
������������������������
��(��	��(�	���1?���2�1#�	
���3
�4���5�������	��
��7���������24�
�
"��
���������������
	�
���	�������*��������������������
�	���	����������	��
1#�	
���3
4�������������24�
�

��/� �#�)��%��
���
,��
�-�-����������	
����
�����������	�������
	������+��
������������
����
����������
���������
��4�
�

��0� �"���!%��!#%#�1��! ���*���#�)��%��
#�	
���3
4�����>�)�����:
���6	�
����
	�&������
$���
	��	���
�#������8��	A
�����������?.��
�����#�������
��?	���
	��	����
&����������
����������!
����*�����	�
�������	���������
������
	�
�	��*
���
���	��
	�������	�
	�����:
���6	�
����
	�&�����4�
�

���,
��������
��2����
�
���
�

��3� 
��)�"�# ��� �� )�(#'��/�*�������&�!������$���%#+���%� ��4"!�'�5�"�+�
� !�'�5� �� %#�1��*��%)��!�"!6���+�7�' ������"���� ��&!#+1���#''%��
�� ��&!#+1��,"����,��+%�����
-���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
�������
	��	���
��������
���
�	���
	���	�������������������
����
	��
��

	����
	������&��������������
��
��������	���
��%��	�����	���
������
��
��	�������
���������������
���	��
���&�
	��������#������&�
	��������)�	���)����4�6	�������
	����������
���
��
�������	�
������
	��
���������		�	�����������
	������������	���������
������
�����*�����*�����
�����
	�����������(��	��(�	����	��
���

���4�6	�
�������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
���
,��
�>�-���������
	��	���
�������
�����������
������	
���4�
�

Page 50



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

��8� 
#!�(� !9%���%� �%��� ���� !��&5��(!)�#�5�	 "!+�:��1���!"�# �;� ��
2 )%#�1�<! =�*��
%
�������
�#�	
���3
4�������	�� 
	������������������
��
������������
���	��
�
�������������
��������	��

����������
	����
��������
���	����
	�������	��
��
����������	��&��
��	��!
����1$���	�����
	2��	A
����
	�������	��	�
����
���
���
�������*�����

��	����
*��4��6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

��
�	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
�

	����
�� �(�
����������������
������&��
��	��!
����1$���	�����
	2�����	����
���������	���
������	������!
���8����	��	�����	����������������������
������
!
���8�����
���	����
	�4��������������
����
���	����
	�������������*���
�������
�
	�����������������������
���	����
	�*����	��	�����
��������
�����
��
�
���
	�
���
	��
��	������4�
�
#����������	��������&��
��	��!
�����	��
���������	�
������
���������������
6	A
�������
��4�
�
�
	��������
	�*�������	��
����
���	����
	����
������&��
��	��!
����6	A
����
���
��������;�B�
�������	�
�������������

��������
��
	����6	������
��
���
)����1�6)2������	����	�����
��������	�����
���
�����
��
	��������	��*�������
�����������*�������
������4�
�
6	�����
	��	���
��	A
�������������	�����
���	����
	�C�����*������	
*�������
������������*�*

������
	�������	��	���������
���������������	������

��
���
���
�����������
�����&��
��	��!
����1$���	�����
	24�
�
%
�������
�#������8�A
�������������	���������������
	�
�������
���&��������
�	���������
����������

�������������
	������
��	���*�����
������������

��
��
�������������	������
	������
���&����������	����������*

����������������
�	�����	�*�����4�
�
���
,��
�-��
1�2� -��������&��
��	��!
���8�����
������*���
������������
�����

�
	����
��
	��
������

��	����
*���������4�
�
1�2� -�����������
���	����
	��
������&��
��	��!
���������	����
������

�	A
����1�	��
��	�����
���	����
	���
	����������������������������
�����
��
�
���
	�
���
	��
��	������2������������*���������.�����
	�
��
���
���	����
	�����*�������
���������
������	���
���������
�����!
����
�	����������������	���������
�����
��������	����
�����
���	����
	�
��4�

�
1�2� -���������
	��
��
	�������	����
������&��
��	��!
�����	A
�����	������

:

��	��'�
*����
	�
�����
	����������������������������4��
������
�
�����������
��������	�
����4�

�
��>� ��� !�"'�� �%)'�"�# �� ��2 )%#�1�<! =�*��

%
�������
�#�	
���3
4�������	�� 
	������������������
��
������������
���	��
�
�������������
���

���	�	����
�
������������	��������
���������

��	����
*���
���	��������
���	�
��
����
	��	�
������
���&�������4�6	��������	�	���������������

Page 51



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

����!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	�����
���
���	��	�����
��4�
�
&
������	������	�
�����
	��	������
���
���	�����	�
���������	���
���	���
���������
	������������

��	�����	��������������	�����
�������
�!
����
#��������
���������
	��������
	�������������	�4�
�
#���������������
	���	���	�������
	��
���	����	��	���	������	�����
	����
����
*���������������*����	
���
���������������	��������
��4�6��*�����������������	��
��	��	�����
�����

����
	��	
���
����������������*������	�����'
���	��	�4�
�
���
,��
�-��
1�2� -��������

��
���
�������	�
������
	�
�����
	�
	�������	�
	��

��	��

��
*������	
���4�
�
1�2� -���������	��
��
	�
������
����������	�������*����	������

	���8���
���

&������������
��
����4�
�
1�2� -�������
���������
�������
���������
�?.��
�����!
�����	� 
��D"
�
���

������	�
������
������*�������
����������4�
�

��?� ,"�+�"���* !����"!6��� '� ���,��+%��
-���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
����������	����	
�����
��
�����
���	��
��
��
	�������	�?����)�����*�����*

�����
�������=
��
�
����������	���

��	����
	
������
*���
��
��
	�������
����������4�6	�
������
	���������
����

��������
�����
��	�����	�
��	��������	��*��������
�����
�����������������*����	������
�����������
�����	�
������
�����������������
��
������
�
��������
���	�4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
�
�
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
%
��
*�	���
	��������
	�
��"���	��.����	��(��	����
������
�����������
����
�����	���������.�����
	����"�������
�6	�
�����
	�(�
���
���$
�����4�172��
*�����*�����
	���������	�����������������
	��
��
	�
�����������	������*���
�
���
,��
�-�-��������
�����������	��
������

	�����	����	���	�
�����	��
�������	��*�������������
�����������������*����	������
�����������
����
	�����
����������

��*����	������.���������	��.��
��������
����*��������	���������
�
��
��������	�������������
�����������
��
������������
���	���	�������
&
�����
���
�����
����	�����	���	���
������������4�
�
1@	����������
����
	��
���

	����(�
���
���$
����C4E���

	����
��"��������
��A
���������
�������
��������������
��������	�������������
	������	���
��42�
�

���� �( � �#(�<! =�*���!"��15��
-���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
��������	��	���
������
������
	�*�?�
	
����'�
*���&���������
������������*�����*�������	�����
�����
�
�����������
��4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�
�������������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
�

Page 52



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

���
,��
�>��
1�2�� -��������?�
	
����'�
*���&���������
�������������������	�����
�����

�
�����������
�����������
���4�
�
1�2� -�����
���������
��������
���������
�?.��
�����!
�����������	��

��
������
	��������������
������?�
	
����'�
*���&�������4�
�

���� 
�7�' �#�1�"���%� �%��� ���#1*& )!*  +��'"��#�1�#��,��+%��
-���"������	��������?.��
�����1�
��
����"�������	��(���
���	��2��	������
������
��
������������
���	���
����������=
�	�����
�����
����	���	�
������*��	�
��������
��	�����

��

�����		�	����
����
	���	������������	���������	�����	��
������
���
���������	��������	���
�����������*�����*����
���	����
��
���	��
	������
��������	���	��������
����������4�6	�������
	���������
������	
*�����������	����
�
�����	����������
���	��
�����
��
���������
	����	���	��*������������8��
��������
	���	�
������
�������������������

	���8������������
�=���������	������
����4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
#��������
	��������������������
��	��
���������
��������	���������������*�����
�������	�
��������*���������������
	��������

����������	�����
���������
��
��
����4��
	���	��*������������������	�������
��	��������

�������������
	��
�����	����
���
���	�����

��

�����		�	���	�����������	������
�
��4�
�
���
,��
�>��
1�2� -���������
������
	�
���

�����
���������
�������.��+������!
��
	�&���

�	��:
�����������������3
������������������	������	�
����4�
�
1�2� -���� ���� ��
�
���� �
� �
��
��� 
	��� ��
0������� �������*
���*����	� 
�����

������� �	�� �
*	� �

	����� �	��	�����

��

�� �
�
��� �	� 
����� �
� �����
�
���� ��������� ��� �� �
���� ������ �	�� ����� �	�
��� ���� ����� ���
����
	�
��
����������	�
����4�

�
1�2� -������	�����'
���	��	������
��������

�������
	��	���	�����

����

���������
	�������	����
������	�����

��

�����		�	����
������	��
���
�������������	��4���

�
1�2� -��������	�����
�������

	�����
��
�������
	������������A
�����

����	����	����
���
��
���	���������������
	�
��	�����

��

�����	��
���	
���4�

�
1-���������������������
��	��������	
���*����	
������������
�������6	���
���
�����
����3
�������������
������
	�������	���
������������������	��	�����

��

��
���		�	����
	��
		����
	��	�42�
�
�����
������,����������
�

���� ��%#+)"'��"%����!�"�������4���! @�(��$���%� �%��� �,��+%�4!#��+%� ��
�*���"!�*�
��)�"�# ���
-���������
��
��?	���
	��	���	��3�����

��

����
�������������
���
��
����	��������
	����
��������
�������������)�����%���	���
������?�����1%
?2�

Page 53



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

��������
���������
����
	������	�����
������

	���������	��
�������&���������
������	��������F����)�������

���	
���������	����
�������6	��	�����
	GH4�6	�
�������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
&
������	������	�
�����
	��	������
���
���
�����
	��	��������������
������
���
����
	��������	�����
�������
�!
����#��������
���������
	��������
	����
���������	�4�
�
���
,��
�>�-���������
	��	���
�������
�����������
����	����������	�������
���	
���4�
�

��.� �"%���� ')�# ��� !�,��+%�$���%#+)"'��"%����!�"�������4���! @�(���
%
�������
�#�	
���3
4��5��������%���
��������������������
��
��?	���
	��	��
�	��3�����

��

����
�������������
�����
����	��#�������*�����	�
������
	�
������
������
������$����
���������-������	��(%6�(�
=������	������������
?.��
�����!
����
����������������������&
�
��
	�&������	�%���
�����������	��
��������
	�����

��
���
������
���
	�
����	���������������	���������
������
(�
=���4��-������
������
����	�������������
�
�����������������������	��
��A
�������
��
������
���
������
�����(���������!��������������	������������
������
��������	�����
����
�	���
�*�����	�
�����������������������	���
���
�
	���������	��
���������4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
�
�
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
%
�������
��
���	�������������������	�������
����������
���	������	���������	��
������������*��������������������
���*

�������
���������
�����?.��
�����!
����
�����	���	����������������������	�������

	���8���������	����������4�
�
!
�������	������!��	�����
������
�����������
���*���������	���������.�����

	����"�������
�6	�
�����
	�(�
���
���$
�����4�1724��
���
������
	����	�����
	��
��������	��.���*�����������	������������������������	�4�%
��
*�	������
�
	��������
	��	���������
���
����.���������	��������������
	��
��
	�
������
�����	������*���
�
���
,��
�-��
1�2� -���������
	��	���
�������
�����������
�����	��
��	����������	����������

	
���4�
�
1�2� -���������������������������	�����	
���4�
�
1�2� -��������

��
���
����������
���
	�
����	��������	
���4��
�
1�2� -�����
��
������������	��
���
�����	���
�����(���������!������&������

�	��
��	�������
��������
�	���	��
����������������������4�
�
1�2� -���������
�������
���������
������������������������	��
��?.��
�����

!
�����������	�������

	���8���������	����������4�
�

Page 54



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

1@	����������
����
	��
���

	����(�
���
���$
����C4E���

	����
��'
��
	�
��A
���������
�������
�������������������	�����
���
��	��
	�����������
	������	�
��
��42�
�
���<2	
��2


���2
����<���
���<�������
��
�

��/� �,�
���7#�=���+"����
%
�������
�#�	
���3
4�����
������?.��
�����!
���������	�������
	�7���
3
�����������������������
��
��?	���
	��	���	��3�����

��

����
��������
�����
�����
����	���	�
������
	�������
������������������	������
�������	����
	�
�������������
�����
�����7�")#+��
�����	�)����4�6	�
�������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
%
�������
�A
�����������������
��	���*�����
�������������

��������������
���	����	�����������
	�����	������
��
������&���������'
���	�	���!
����������
�������*

����������������
�?.��
�����!
�����
������
���4�"�����
	���*���
���
���
�������
���A
�����������	��������
������������	���������	��
�������	�����
���4EB����

�������������
	�
���������������������	���4�
�
���
,��
�>�-����������
������������������	�������������	����
	�
������
�������
�����
�����")#+��
�����	�)��������	
���4�
�
1�

	����
��!��������������������
	����	��������	����������������!
�����������

��!6-#+42�
�
�2�,
���9�����������
�

��0� �*#'+!��9%���!7#(�%����! 7��������+"������ !��:� 7��&�!�����;��
-���������
��
���������	8��&���������
�������������
�����
����	���	�
������
	�
��������
����	����������������*����
	��	
�	�����
����������	8��&���������	�
)����4�-������
���������
�������
�
�����
�
	�����
����	���	���	������
	�
�����������
�������*�������
������
	�����
	�
�	��*
����
����	��
����������	8��
&�������4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�����
���������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
#�������������������������
���	���
���������	���
	�����	������*��	�����
��
�����(���	����������	���	��
��
���
����������*�����
�
������������
�
�����
����
���
����������#����������
�	�����
���
�����(���	�������4�
�
+	��������
������!
������������������������
����
�����?.��
�����#�������
��
�������	8��&���������	������
��������*�
������
	����
�����
���������
����	���
�	�����	��������	���
�������*
���	�4�
�
���
,��
�>��
1�2� -���������
	��	���
�������
�����������
������	
������	�������
������

+�������	������
	����
����
	���������������!
���8��+��
���������
�����	�4�

�

Page 55



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

1�2� -���������
	��	
�	���������
	�
������������
����������	8��&���������	�
)���������
��
�������������
�����
������	��
����������
��
������
�
���	��	��6���
����	��3
����4�

�
��3� �! 1!�%%���� !�� ���*��,��+%��+)("�# ���*"''��1���

-���������
��
���������	8��&���������
�������������
����
�������	������
��
������������	�����������	������)�����?�
����
	�������	���1)?�24�6	�
������
	���������
������
���
���������
������
��������
������������	��


���	���������
�
������
������	�.���������	������
��	���	���������	��	������
������	����������
�������	���������
�����������������	��
����)�����?�
����
	�
������	���!
�����	��������
�
��������������
��������	������)?�4�6	�
�������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
���
,��
�>�-����������
������������
������
	�����)�����?�
����
	�
������	������	
�����*�������
��
����������	��
�������
�
������
���
�
���
�����
���	����	�������������
	�
���
��������
���	��4���
�
,�������
�

��8� ��%� �%��� �,��+%�
='��!"#'�
��)�"�# ���
-���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
�������
	��	���
�����
���
����
	��
��

	����������������)�����+*��-�����
	������&�������������4�
6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
&
������	������	�
�����
	��	������
���
���
�����
	��	��������������
������
���
����
	��������	�����
�������
�!
����#��������
���������
	��������
	����
��
�
����������	�4�
�
6	�����
	��	���
�#������8��
���	����������	�������
������	�����
�	�
�����
	��
������������������
����
	������������
��
������������
���	��
�������������������
	����������	���������4�6��*�����������������������
	���
*

�������������*����?.��
�����!
����#��������	�
������
��������	��
*��������
�������
	��������
	���

����������	��
���������
�4�
�
���
,��
�>�-������������
	����
��������
����
	��������������*����	�����
�
�����������
�������	
���4�
�

��>� 
�%#1��A�� %����� !��� !��*��+�7�' ������ ����=�(*"�1#�1�!  �%�"�+�
"%% (#"��+��"(#'#�#�%�"���#++'�� ��,�#%)!������!���
-���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
���*������

�����
����	��
�
��������
	��	����
������&������)�	����C���������-��	��
���	������
+��
��
	�������
��"�
����*����)���	�	�����������������
��������	������

��
����	
���
	����
��
	����	�
������
�������������
����	����
�������������������
#������
	�)���
�����	������������������
�*����	���������D�������	
���
�����
���
��4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
#������������������������
��������������
��=
�	��*
���	��
	�������	��������4�

Page 56



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

�
���
,��
�>��
1�2� -��������
�����������	��
�����
��������
	�
��I�EE�7�����
������&������

)�	��&����
	���C���������	���
��
������
����	��I��E�������
������
-��	��
���	������+��
��
	�������
��"�
����*����)���	�	���������������
(�
�������1�
���
��*�����������������?.��
�����!
��������
�����
��
�	=����
	��	�
����������������������*���������
��
������
����	����������
���	����������
�����������
	���C��
	��	�24��

�
1�2� -��������
�����������	��
��	��	=����
	��	�
���������������
�������

�
�������*���������
��
������
����	��I�E;�������
������	����
��	�����
�
��
*�	��
��I��E������	������	
���
	����
��
	��
��I�7����4��

�
1�2� -����������	
�����	�������
	����
	��	�������������	��
���������
�����

&�
���?	���	��6	�������%����������%
	���
�����
������I��E�������	�
�����
�
��
	���	���	�����������
	��	����
��
�*
������
�������*����������
	���
��
�����A
����	����
����
	������	������
�
�����
�����������
��
I;;7�7���
	����������
���	��
�����	��	���������������	�"�
���&
�����
���������������
���������	��������������������	���������
����
	�
������
���
�����*����	���

�4�

�
��?� , �*�!� ���%�"���� �%)'�"�# ����+"����

%
�������
�#�	
���3
4�7E���<��� 
�������������������
��
������������
���	��
�
�������������
���������	��
������

��
���������	����
�������
�����
�
	�
�����
	��.�������
	�������	��	���������
��)
�����
	�:����?�������	���
*�
�
����
	�
�����
	��������	�
�����
�����	��������
�
������
������?���������
�����

�����
	���������������!
���4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

��
�	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
6	�����
	��	���
��
���	��������
	����������	
�����
���������
�	����	�������
�������)
�����
	�?�������#�������	
����������������*�
�������	�����
��
����
*������	��
	�������	��	�������
	��
��
�����������������
���)����4�
�
���
,��
�>�-��������	�*������	�����
��
����������������*����	������
��������
���
�����������
���4�
�
�
�,��2��,�2���
��
���,������
�

�.�� �*��< 7�!�����9%�	')��	"+1��!�� !���! 1!"����$�#��! +)(�# �� ��"��
"+�#�#%�!"�# ��(*"!1��� !��*��#%%)�� ��"�&')��&"+1���
-���"������	��������?.��
�����1�
��
����"�������	��(���
���	��2��	������
������
��
��"�
���&
�����������
����������=
�	�����
����	�
���	��
���������	�
���	������

������

���������'
���	��	�8��3���
	���$��
���(�
��������
�
����!�
��!�������������������	����������������	��
�������
����
��	��
���	�����
����������
	��	���������
���������
�	��
��!�
��!��������������
(����	��(��������	�����
���	��	������������
�
������	�������
���
���
���	���4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�����
���������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�

Page 57



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

%
�������
�A
���������������
	�������
	�*����������������������

	����*

���
	
����
������
������������������	����	��4��
�
$������	������	�*�����������
	���	��*������������	�������
	��
�������
�����	������������
��������������	����
	��������������	��������������

��
��
	�����
�������	�4�
�
���
,��
�-��
1�2� -�����������	�����
�����!�
��!��������������(����	��(�������&������

���	
���4�
�
1�2� -��������
�����������	��
������	��
�
���
	�
���	�����	�������
	��������


��I�����
������ �	
����������
���������
�	��
�������!�
��!�������������
��������
���
������������
	����
�������	���	�
�������������

	�����*������
IE��
	�����
	������������
���
��D��
��	����������	��	
���������
��
�������	�
���
���������
���C�������	�����������
�����*�����	��
	����
��
�������
���������
		��4��

�
1�2� -���������
�������
���������
����
�
��������	��
������!
�����������	��

��������������
������	���������

�������������
	�4�
�
���
��������
��
��
�����4�����
���
�

�.�� ��%� �%��� ��*��
��)�"�# ��� �� )�(#'�&5��*��,��+%�4"#!�!"+������!#�1�
<! )���
-���������
��
��$��

������
�������������
�����
����	��������
	����
�����
���
����
	�������
��
����

	����
	������&���������������������)�����
%���������&�����	��'�

�4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
�
�
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
���
,��
�>��
1�2� -���������

��*
�����������
	�������	���������

	�����	��
��
���
��

�������������	
���4�
�
1�2� -������������8�����������
	��
������	���������
�������9%�������������8����

�
��
����4�
�
1�2� -��������
�������
����������	��
��	���������	����
	���
������

�
��
	�����
	���	���������	���������	�����*��������������	����

��
�
������
����
�
��
	���������������
�����4���

�
�.�� 4#�"�(#"'�2�"'�*�� �#� !#�1�����B���$�� ��*�3��

-���������
��
��$��

������
�������������
��������	��

�������

	���8��
��
=��������	�	�������������
����
	��
������D��������������������������
������
��	�	���������4�-������
����	��
�����������
	�
	�������	�	���������
���	���
��

�����������	�	������	�����
�����	��
��	���

	������.��
������
	��	�����������	��

��������
��4��-������
������
������*��������
����
	�
�������
�������������.�
�
	�����	���
���	����
�
	������������
����������	��
	�����
�������
���������	��
�������
������
�������
���	������4��6	��������	�	�������������������

Page 58



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	��
���
��4�
�
#�����������������	�
������
	������
����
	�������	���
����������������
�)�����
�	����	��	������
��������	������	��	
���	��������
���4�
�
-���������
��
��$��

��������
���
�������	�
������
	���������������	���
�

	�
�	���������*����:#$�4�
�
���
,��
�>�-����������
=��������	�	������
����
	�
�������
��
�������������.�
�
	����
��������	�	�������������	
���4�
�

�..� �"�#�"'��! 1!"������+"�������$���/��
-���������
��
��$��

������
�������������
�����
����	���	�
������
	�����
����������
��������
����
	��
������D���������&�������������4��-������
���
�	��
�����	�
������
�������������

���������
������
����������*���������
���	�
����������
��9"����8�����
���
�9'���	8���	�������������A
���������
����
�	����
���������
������
����
�����������
	��
�����=
���������4��6	�
������
	���������
����

�����������������
������
����
*��
������������
�
��
�����4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�����
���������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
���
,��
�>��
1�2� -����������������
����
	�
	�������	������
	���	��:

��	��$���	
��

"��

	��1:$"2�����������
�����������	
���4��
�
1�2� -�����������	�����
������������
������"������
�����'���	�

��
����������������

��*����	������
	�74��
�������
�����������
�������
	
���4�

�
1�2� -����������
�
��
	�
��I����������
�����������������
��������
�����

�
	��������������
��������
��*
����������������#��������
	���������
����������
���������������
	��	��	������������������
���4�

�
1�2� -���������	=����
	��	�
���������������
�������
��I<7;�<�����
	�������


	�
��
������
��
*�	����
���������
����
	�
���
���
����
�����������
����
���4�

�
1�2� -�������������
����
	�
��I7�E���������
������!
����	��&��

����
������

%
�
���1!&%2���
��������
��������������
	��	��	�����������
�����������
��(�������!�����3�����	���������	8��:
��������
����
���4�

�
1�2� -���������.��	��
	��	�����
���
�������.����	������������
�������

��
����
	��
������������*
�����
��	��
���������
�����
����*
��������
����
���4�

�
1�2� -��������
���
�����

������
������
������"���������-���	
�
���:
������



���	���*����	�����������74E4E�
�������
�����������
�����������
���4�
�

Page 59



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

1�2� -����������������
���������������
	��	��	����������
��I�5�������
���0
��
���������#����		�
��&A
���������	��������
���4�

�
�./� �!�"%)!5��"�"1��������!"��15���+"�������B����

-���������
��
��$��

������
�������������
�����
����	���������*��	��
������

������-����
���#�	�����	��&���������
������D����*�����*�������
�������
����!
�����	�%���
��������4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
�
�
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
#�������*������
������*������������
	������
��	������������
��������
�
����
���	�����
�����:

��	��&
���������������
�������
�A
������������4�
�
���
,��
�>�-��������
������
	�����-����
���#�	�����	���
��
*�	���	��
�	������	������������
������D��������	
���4�
�

�.0� , ("'�< 7�!��������% )!(����7#�=�� �%)'�"�# ���
-���������
��
��$��

������
�������������
���������	��
��������
�����������
�	���������
������)
����'
���	��	��$��

����$����*��	����
����	����������
��
�����
	�
�����
	�����
	����
����������������

	����
	������+��
��������4�6	�
�������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4��
�
#��������
	�������������
��	������������
���������	��	������	����	����
��
)������	������
����������,
���������
��
������4��
	���	��*������������	�
������
	��
����������������������	���
������������	����
	�
�����������*���	������
	�����
��	��
�
��������
������
���������

	��
����
������
	
����
	������	��4�
�
���
,��
�>��
1�2� -����������������
����������
	����
���������
���������	���
��

�
��
	�������	��)
����'
���	��	��1��)'2����	
���4�
�
1�2� -����
������������
��
�������
��
	��	
������
�
��*������)'��	��
������

�	�
������
�����
����	������	��������
�
����4�
�

�.3� ,"!1���"%#� �$����! 7"'� ��!�7#%�+�<"�&'#�1��(�����0���"������� ��
,#(��%#�1�� '#(5�����$������
-���������
��
��$��

������
�������������
��������	��	��������������
'�����	��"������E�&������	��
��)���	��	��(
�����*������
	���	�����
�������	��
���������	������������

	����*

���������*��	�����	������
�������	���
	�
����������������	
�����	��4�6	�������
	���������
������
�
�����	���������
	�
�����
	�$��
���*�����*���������
�
�����

	��������
	���
�
������
������
	�
�����
	�
	���������������	
������
	��	�����(
�������	������
���������������
	�����4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
�
�
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
�
�����
��������������'�����	��"������E�&������	��
��)���	��	��(
������	��
�������������
	�
�����
	�$��
����������	���
�������
�!
����#��������
��������
�	�
�����
	�����
���
����������	�4��
�

Page 60



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

���
,��
�$�-��������	���
	��������������������'�����	��"������E�
&������	��
��)���	��	��(
���������0�������
�������*���������
	�
�����
	�
���
�����������

	���8������
	����
������
������
	�
�����
	��.���������
���
�
�
��	����������������
�&��
��	��!
����1$��

������	���

	����&�������2�
�
���
	��������
	4�
�
1-���������������������
��	��������	
���*����	
������������
�������6	���������
�����
���	��
����(
�����
	��������'�����	��"������E�����������������������
�
�

	���42�
�

�.8� �*"�1#�1��*��� !6�'"(��$�
�7�' ������ ���*���#�5�����!��
����� ��

�%#1��"�+�� %����� !���
%
�������
�#�	
���3
4������<��� 
�������������������
��
��$��

������	������
"������	��������?.��
�����1�
��
����"�������	��(���
���	��2��
����������
=
�	�����
�����
����	���	�
������
	���
�
������
�����
����	���
���	����
�
��
��������������������������)�����������

	�������

����������������
����
��	�����	���������
	����
���	������������	���4�6	�������
	���������
����

����
����
�����
����	��I����<������
�����������
��������
=���4�6	��������	�	�������
������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	�����
���
���	��	�����
��4�
�
#�������������������������
���	���
�����	���	�	����������
��������
����
	�
�	���������
���
�����������4�
�
���
,��
�>�-�����.��	���
���
��I����<������
�����������������
������
�	����������������	����
	����
�������'�����'�
����&�������������������*����	�����
�
�����������
�����������
���4�
�

�.>� ,��+%���#�#"�#7���)&$	 "!+��!!"�1�����%��
-���"������	��������?.��
�����1�
��
����"�������	��(���
���	��2�
�
�������������
���*������

�����
������������������*
����
������������
	�
��
�
�0�
������
��
��
�������*
���
�����������)�����6	���������&���������
(���	�������!
����4�6	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
�
�
	��������
	��������������
	���	���*����	��������
���	��	�����
��4�
�
#�����������������������
	���	���	���������
�����������������	��
����	�����
	��
���	�	�������	����	����
��?����)�������	���	�����
	�����
�������������
���
	��	�
��4�6	��
	��
��
	�����*������
���	��������������
���
����
���������
����
�
���?.��
�����!
���������	���	�
������
���
�������������
	�
�
����������4�
�
���
,��
�>��
1�2� -������������	����	����
������������
	��	���������
	�
��)�����6	���������

�
���
��������	����	�������	�
����4�
�
1�2� -�������
���������
�������
���������
�?.��
�����!
�����	�
������
�

��
��������������	���������
�������
���	�	�������	����	����
��&

����
?�����	�������)����4�

�
�

Page 61



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�


����
4���	,�����
���� �-:�3+J?#!?$������
�
,����
����4
����,,����

4��,�<�	,��
�����
���� ��-:�3+J?#!?$�������1E4���(4#42�
�
1&��
��	��&
��
���*����	
�����������
���
���	����������������	������4����4�4�
	�
�����3
�����������2�
�
�
�
�

Page 62



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
Relating to Resources and Council Functions Scrutiny Board 

 
 

1 December 2011 – 31 March 2012 
 
 

 (Urdu):- 

P
age 63



 

P
age 64



 
LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 

 
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

For the period 1 December 2011 to 31 March 2012 
 

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Supply of cleaning 
materials and equipment to 
Leeds City Council 
To award a contract for the 
provision of cleaning 
materials and equipment to 
Leeds City Council. 

Director of 
Resources 
 
 

1/12/11  
 
 

Award report from the 
tender process 
 

 
wayne.baxter@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
age 65



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

INJECTION OF FUNDING 
INTO THE APPROVED 
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
Approval to inject the 
following funding into the 
approved capital 
programme; £119,994 of 
Environmental 
Improvement Grant plus 
£47,000 of E_ACT funds to 
part finance the cost of 
setting up the East Leeds 
Academy, and a 
£1,500,000 revenue 
funding contribution to part 
finance the cost of the 
Leeds Basic Need 
programme for primary 
schools. 

Director of 
Resources 
 
 

1/12/11 East Leeds 
Academy, and 
schools included 
in the Basic Need 
programme. 

 
 
 

Design and Cost Report 
 

 
charlotte.foley@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

Supply and Maintenance of 
Vehicle Tyres 
To agree the award of 
Tender for the Supply and 
Maintenance of Vehicle 
Tyres 

Chief Commercial 
Services Officer 
 
 

1/12/11 Fleet  Services, 
Procurement Unit, 
Chief Officer 
concerned 
 
 

Tender Submissions 
 

Carl Snowden 
carl.snowden@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
age 66



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

The Manufacture, Supply 
and Installation of 
Passenger Lifts, Stair Lifts 
and through the Floor Lifts 
to Leeds City Council 
Buildings 
Property Maintenance’s 
procurement exercise for 
the award of a framework 
contract for the 
manufacture. Supply and 
installation of passenger 
lifts, stair lifts and through 
the floor lifts to Leeds 
Council Buildings 

Chief Commercial 
Services Officer 
 
 

1/12/11 None 
 
 

The award report from the 
tender process 
 

 
sarah.martin@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

The design and build of a 
new electrical infrastructure 
for the Apex Data Centre 
To award a contract to an 
appropriate contractor 
following a regulated 
tender process 

Chief ICT Officer 
 
 

1/12/11 N/A 
 
 

Delegated Decision Report 
 

 
andrew.byrom@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

P
age 67



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Awarding of the Framework 
Contract for the provision 
of Legal Services to Leeds 
City Council for a period of 
2 years from the 1st 
January 2012 with the 
option of a further 2 years 
To award the Framework 
Contract for the provision 
of Legal Services to Leeds 
City Council 

City Solicitor 
 
 

1/12/11 n/a 
 
 

Tender Returns 
 

 
mark.turnbull@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Monthly Financial Health 
Report 2011/12 
In noting the financial 
position for the month for 
the Authority a decision will 
be required as to the 
treatment of any variation 
identified 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Resources and 
Corporate 
Functions) 
 

14/12/11 n/a 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Doug Meeson, Chief 
Officer (Financial 
Management) 
doug.meeson@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
age 68



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Equality Improvement 
Priorities 2011-2015 
Approval of the Equality 
Improvement Priorities 
2011-2015 which set out 
the Council’s continued 
commitment to equality, 
outlines the Council’s 
equality objectives, 
identifies how progress will 
be measured and how we 
will continue to improve 
and further embed the 
equality agenda 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Resources and 
Corporate 
Functions) 
 

14/12/11 Already taken place 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

 
lelir.yeung@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
age 69



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Initial Budget Proposals 
Agreement to the 
proposals for the allocation 
of available resources to 
support the delivery of the 
Council’s spending 
priorities for 2012/2013, 
and agreement to the 
indicative position for the 
following two years. The 
final budget proposals will 
be presented to Full 
Council in February for 
approval. 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Resources and 
Corporate 
Functions) 
 

14/12/11 In accordance with the 
Council’s constitution, 
consultation will be 
undertaken with 
stakeholder’s 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Doug Meeson, Chief 
Officer (Financial 
Management) 
doug.meeson@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Provision of Transport for 
Leeds City Council Staff 
engaged on Council 
Business 
To agree the award of 
Tender for the Provision of 
Transport for Leeds City 
Council Staff engaged on 
Council Business 

Chief Officer 
Resources and 
Strategy 
 
 

28/12/11 Planning Policy and 
Improvement, 
Procurement Unit, 
Chief Officer 
concerned 
 
 

Tender Submissions 
 

 
lorraine.ritchie@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

P
age 70



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Long Term Vehicle Hire 
To agree the award of 
framework suppliers for the 
Long Term Hire of Vehicles 

Chief Commercial 
Services Officer 
 
 

15/12/11 Fleet Services, 
Procurement Unit, 
Chief Officer 
concerned 
 
 

Tender Submissions 
 

Carl Snowden 
carl.snowden@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Short Term Vehicle Hire 
To agree the award of 
framework suppliers for the 
Short Term Hire of 
Vehicles 

Chief Commercial 
Services Officer 
 
 

15/12/11 Fleet services, 
Procurement Unit, 
Chief Officer 
Concerned 
 
 

Tender Submissions 
 

Carl Snowden 
carl.snowden@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Agency Worker Supply 
Contract 
To re-let LCC's general 
agency supply contract. 

Director of 
Resources 
 
 

31/12/11 Trade Unions. 
 
 

Decision report 
 

 
alex.watson@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Collection of Local 
Taxation 
Approval of Council Tax 
and Business Rate write 
offs for period 1st April – 
30th September 2011 

Chief Revenues and 
Benefits Officer 
 
 

1/1/12 Director of Resources 
 
 

Report on values and type 
 

 
david.levitt@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
age 71



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Supply and Maintenance of 
Vehicle Tyres 
To agree the award of 
Tender for the Supply and 
Maintenance of Vehicle 
Tyres 

Chief Commercial 
Services Officer 
 
 

11/1/12 Fleet Services, 
Procurement Unit, 
Chief Officer 
concerned. 
 
 

Tender Submissions 
 

 
carl.snowden@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

 

P
age 72



 
 
NOTES 

 
Key decisions  are those executive decisions: 

• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 

• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards 
 

Executive Board Portfolios Executive Member 
 

Resources and Corporate Functions Councillor Keith Wakefield 

Development and the Economy Councillor Richard Lewis 

Environmental Services Councillor Mark Dobson 

Neighbourhoods Housing and 
Regeneration 

Councillor Peter Gruen 

Children’s Services Councillor Judith Blake 

Leisure Councillor Adam Ogilvie 

Adult Health and Social Care Councillor Lucinda Yeadon 

Leader of the Conservative Group Councillor Andrew Carter 

Leader of the Liberal Democrat 
Group 

Councillor Stewart Golton 

Leader of the Morley Borough Indep Councillor Robert Finnigan 

 
 

P
age 73



 
In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such 
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.  
 

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 
 

BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK DECISIONS 

Decisions Decision Maker Expected Date 
of Decision 

Proposed 
Consultation 

Documents to be considered 
by Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 

Budget 
 
 

Council 22nd February 
2012 

Via Executive 
Board, Scrutiny 
Board (Resources 
and Council 
Services), 
relevant 
stakeholders 
 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Director of 
Resources 

Vision for Leeds 
 

Council To be 
confirmed 

Via Executive 
Board, all 
Scrutiny Boards 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Assistant Chief 
Executive 
(Planning, Policy 
and 
Improvement) 
 

Council Business 
Plan 

Council July 2013 Via Executive 
Board, all 
Scrutiny Boards 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Assistant Chief 
Executive (Policy, 
Planning and 
Improvement) 

Licensing Authority 
Policy Statement 
(Gambling Policy) 
 
 
 
Insertion of Large 

Council 
 
 
 
 
 
Council 

November 
2012 
 
 
 
 
18th January 

Via Executive 
Board, Scrutiny 
Board (Resources 
and Council 
Services), 
Licensing 
Committee, 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting, including the new 
policy, consultation report and 
relevant sections from the 
Gambling Act 2005. 
 

Director of 
Resources 

P
age 74



 

Decisions Decision Maker Expected Date 
of Decision 

Proposed 
Consultation 

Documents to be considered 
by Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 

Casino Section  2012 stakeholders, 
general public, 
Ward Members, 
current licensees  
 

 
 
NOTES: 
The Council’s Constitution, in Article 4, defines those plans and strategies which make up the Budget and Policy Framework. Details of the 
consultation process are published in the Council’s Forward Plan as required under the Budget and Policy Framework.  
 
Full Council ( a meeting of all Members of Council) are responsible for the adoption of the Budget and Policy Framework. 

P
age 75



P
age 76

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	9th November 2011

	7 2011/12 Quarter 2 Performance Report
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	8 Waste Management Process Review Project
	9 Work Schedule
	Work Schedule
	Executive Board Minutes
	Resources and Council Function


